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2024 12 31
1990
2020
35
2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07 2020 28
DMS 2103 2021 30
One-Day 2023 12
DMS 2020 07
2020 28
2025 25
DMS 2103 10
2021 30
2031 31
One-Day 10 2023 12

2033 31
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102
FRS102
1990
FRS102
AIFM
DMS 2020 07
2025 25
50,000
12
FRS102
AIFM
12
DMS 2020 07
DMS 2103
One-Day
2023

)
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)
2024 12 31
11
FRS102
FRS102 1AS39
FRS102
IFRS
FRS102
1AS39
FRS102
FRS102
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One-Day
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2024 12 31

DMS

DMS

2023 12 31

2020 07

2103
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
3,008 7,645
(260,547) (613,161)
(257,539) (605,516)
(903) (121)
3,270,363 3,975,963
3,269,460 3,975,842
3,011,921 3,370,326

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
4,766 2,363

(3,274,501)

(1,348,724)

(3,269,735)

(1,346,361)

(250) (302)
4,630,903 3,856,308
4,630,653 3,856,006
1,360,918 2,509,645




One-Day
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
64,045 103,127
(2,742,077) (2,435)
154,660 197,237
(174,758) (199,917)
1,705,645 33,969
(992,485) 131,981
(856,509) 943,860
(628,987) (1,231)
1,928,101 971,973
442,605 1,914,602
(549,880) 2,046,583




EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1997 739

1997 739

1997

DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31

210
19,707
82,667

102,584

2023 12 31

188

BNP 21,537
JP 54,966
76,691
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DMS

One-Day

JP

DMS

2103

2020

07
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2024 12 31

412
9,781
94,205
104,398

2023 12 31

217
9,385
56,107
65,709

2024 12 31

(223,437)
107
(223,330)

2023 12 31

1,515
37,013
38,528

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

44,497 35,550
1,206 637
12,765 5,134

58,468 41,321




DMS 2103
One-Day
0.15
2020 07
155,000
2024 12
2020 07
115,240
DMS 2103
31 123,163
One-Day
25,834 2023 12 31
DMS
10,587
DMS
DMS 2103
One-Day

2024 12 31
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
854,167 845,024
1,680 1,124
17,924 4,027
873,771 850,175
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
42,798 -
29,431 6,630
307 11
7,002 3,012
79,538 9,653
DMS
DMS 2103
125,000 One-Day
31 DMS
129,290 2023 12 31
30,446 2023 12 31 47,104
75,213 2023 12
11,988 2023 12 31 74,975
155,000 2023 12 31 46,713
46,713 2024 12 31
2103
41,666 125,000
2020 07
0.53
0.80
DMS
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2020 07 391,147 2023 12 31
407,182 63,925 2023 12 31 33,755 DMS
2103 415,968 2023 12 31
435,175 63,681 2023 12 31 34,196 One-
Day 442,584 2023 12 31 120,239 62,813 2023
12 31 39,178
10 0.04 15
0.035 25 0.03
0.01
2024 12 31
DMS 2020 07
7,380 2023 12 31 7,685 1,206 2023 12 31 637
DMS 2103
7,849 2023 12 31 8,211 1,680 2023 12 31 1,124
One-Day 5,532 2023 12 31 1,503
307 2023 12 31 11
36,524 2023 12 31 36,943
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
25,000 DMS 2103
125,000 One-Day 165,000
One-Day 16,387 2023 12 31 145,000
2024 12 31 One-Day
98,413 2023 12 31 130,447 2024 12
31 DMS 2020 07

DMS 2103
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DMS
2024 12 31
2103
854,167

2024
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2023 12 31 DMS 2103
2103
DMS
29,976 2023 12 31 163,519
2023 12 31 845,024
12 31 2023 12 31
DNIS DNIS one-0a
2020 07 2103 y
2024 12 31 2024 12 31 2024 12 31
- - 46,294,082
73,313,987 74,537,110 -
_ - 87,351
73,313,987 74,537,110 46,381,433
- - 630,218
- - 630,218
DNS DN
2020 07 2103 One-Day
2023 12 31 2023 12 31 2023 12 31
- - 59,636,333
75,487,222 83,860,833 -

943,860

105/268



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
ooooodooodooonnooodd

75,487,222 83,860,833 60,580,193
- - 1,231
- - 1,231
One-Day
2024 12 31
87,351 (87,351) - - -
46,294,082 - - - 46,294,082
46,381,433 (87,351) - - 46,294,082
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630,218 (87,351) - - 542,867
630,218 (87,351) - - 542,867
2023 12 31
943,860 (1,231) - - 942,629
59,636,333 - - - 59,636,333
60,580,193 (1,231) - - 60,578,962
1,231 (1,231) - - _
1,231 (1,231) - - -
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07 DMS
2103
10 150,000
10 200,000
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0.01 0.01
One-Day
10 150,000
10 150,000

1,000 150,000,000

1,000 150,000,000

DMS

2024 12 31 2023 12 31

7,327,416 1,334,915 7,935,866 1,395,373

(453,615) (71,434) (608, 450) (60,458)

108/268



EDINETOOOO

OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
ooooodooodooooooodd

6,873,801 1,263,481 7,327,416 1,334,915
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
10,370,514 1,229,436 10,802,722 1,238,393
(1,282,715) (106,473) (432,208) (8,957)
9,087,799 1,122,963 10,370,514 1,229,436
One-Day
2024 12 31
2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470
1,052,879 219,090 212,751 2,571
(649,136) (91,377) (2,176,476) (904,288)
2,732,910 355,005 1,827,705 233,753
2023 12 31
2,359,703 227,292 4,214,764 1,135,470
(30,536) - (423,334) -
2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470
2024 12 31 DMS
2020 07 28,710 2023 12
31 DMS 2103 7,520
2023 12 31 7,430 One-Day 66,846 2023 12
31
10
DMS 2020 07 DMS

2103
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One-Day
2024 12 31 DMS 2020 07
DMS 2103
One-Day 345,338 2023 12 31 81,820
11
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
12,238 26,001
7,380 7,685
16,630 -
36,248 33,686
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
29,976 163,519
7,849 8,211
25,256 10,841

63,081 182,571
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12.

@

7,331,399

2023 12 31
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
122,340 9,041
22,801 6,630
5,485 -
5,532 1,503
10,474 3,631
166,632 20,805
10
2020 07
7,548,722 DMS 2103
7,453,711 2023 12 31 8,386,083 One-Day

2023 12 31 5,963,633 10
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AIFM

(D)

31

A+

2024 12 31

AIFM

AIFM

BBH
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2023 12 31

AIFMD

BBH
BBH
BBH

A+ 2023 12
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A 2023 12 31 A

2024 12 31
MFS
DOT DOT MFS
UBO DOT
1,000
2024 12 31
(e)
One-Day
One-Day
A+ 2023 12

31 A+
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Q)
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
7,657,072 65,759,499 73,416,571
- (231,549) (231,549)
7,657,072 65,527,950 73,185,022
2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
8,485,702 67,078,211 75,563,913
- (122,180) (122,180)
8,485,702 66,956,031 75,441,733
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
5,375,535 69,276,560 74,641,508
- (967,547) (956,960)

5,375,535 68,309,013 73,684,548
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2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
6,102,801 77,823,741 83,926,542
- (966,776) (966,776)
6,102,801 76,856,965 82,959,766
One-Day
2024 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
87,458 46,686,025 46,773,483
(630,218) (458,468) (1,088,686)
(542,760) 46,227,557 45,684,797
2023 12 31
( ) ( ) ( )
1,298,734 60,131,969 61,430,703
(1,231) (725,797) (727,028)
1,297,503 59,406,172 60,703,675
2024 12 31
2020 07
382,854 2023 12 31 424,285 DMS 2103
268,777 2023 12 31 305,140
2024 12 31
One-Day 27,138 2023 12 31
64,875
)
FRS102 2A.1
2016 FRS 34.22
IFRS 13 GAAP
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31
- - 73,313,987 73,313,987
- - 73,313,987 73,313,987
2023 12 31
- - 75,487,222 75,487,222
- - 75,487,222 75,487,222
DMS 2103
2024 12 31
- - 74,537,110 74,537,110
- - 74,537,110 74,537,110
2023 12 31
- - 83,860,833 83,860,833
- - 83,860,833 83,860,833
One-Day
2024 12 31
- 46,294,082 - 46,294,082
- 87,351 - 87,351
- 46,381,433 - 46,381,433
- 630,218 - 630,218
- 630,218 - 630,218
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2023 12 31
- 59,636,333 - 59,636,333
- 943,860 - 943,860
- 60,580,193 - 60,580,193
- 1,231 - 1,231
- 1,231 - 1,231
FRS102
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
75,487,222 78,322,261
(5.185,719) (6,204,569)
(258, 338) (606, 433)
3,270,822 3,975,963
73,313,987 75,487,222
2024 12 31
3,665,699 2023 12 31 3,774,361
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
83,860,833 84,842,688
(10,684,130) (3,490,121)
(3,270,710) (1,348,042)
4,631,117 3,856,308
74,537,110 83,860,833
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2024 12 31
3,726,856 2023 12 31 4,193,042
GS
13.
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1.6086 1.4655
1.0394 1.1039
157.2000 140.9800
14.
2024 12 31
2023 12 31 AIFM
IE
IE FRS102
IE
IE 2024 11
2025 31
IE UK
2024 29

2025 31
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15.
IE
16.
FRS102
DMS 2020 07 2025 25
50,000
DMS 2020 07
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
73,185,022 75,441,733
50,000 -
73,235,022 75,441,733
DMS 2103
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
73,684,548 82,959,766
- 57,231

73,684,548 83,016,997
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One-Day

17.

2024 12 31

18.

DMS

2024 12 31

19.
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
45,684,797 60,703,675
98,413 130,447
45,783,210 60,834,122
2024 29
2024 11
2025 31
2025 31
2020 07 2025 25
50,000

2025 11
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2024 12 31
One-Day
2023 12 31 98.24
412,787 307 46,294,082 101.33
46,294,082 101.33
2023 12 31 1.56

1,904,537 285,989,297 10/01/2025 Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 7 83,520 0.18
2,047,072,986 13,079,077  10/02/2025 Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 2 3,823 0.01
4,498,922 28,638 10/01/2025 Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 1 8 0.00
87,351 0.19

46,381,433 101.52

2023 12 31 0.00

2,340,771,695 15,531,165 10/01/2025 Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 2 (626,464) (1.37)
13,079,938 2,054,782,398 10/01/2025 Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 2 (3,746) (0.01)
28,744 4,498,922 10/02/2025 Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 1 @) (0.00)
(630,218) (1.38)

(630,218) (1.38)

(66,418) (0.14)

45,684,797 100.00
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

A5 Tarper Marerity  DAS Targer Maturity

Serving Famd H020007 Seiting Fumd 2103
{Imvesting in Goldman  {Investing in Goldman e iy
Kachs Corparate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premium Fund
A ar As Asan
31 Dvecem her 2024 31 Devember 2024 31 Dhevem ber 2024
Notes UsD UsD UsD
Current Asseis
Finamenal assets ad fair value through
prosfit or loss 2612
Total Returm Basket Swaps - - 46,294,082
Perfomance-linked Motes T3.313.9%7 TR0 .
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Forcign Currency Contracis - - 87,351
Cash 3 102,584 104,398 107
Receivable for investments sold - - 3467
Receivable for Fund Units sold - - 360,476
Total Current Asscis 73,416,571 74,641,508 46,773,483
Equity
Met assets atiributable o Unitholders 73,185,022 T3.684.548 45,684,707
Total Equity 16 73185022 73684548 45,684,797
Current Liabilitics
Financial liabilitics at fair value
through profit or loss [
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Forcign Currency Contracts - - 630,218
Bank overdrafi 3 - - 223 437
Mstnibution fees payable 5 63,925 63,68 62213
Ligpclatson costs payvable® 16 S0, (W) - -
AlFM fees payable 5 30,4440 115988 25834
Pavable for Unitz repurchased 9 18710 7.500 G, B
(hher pavable 4 S8, AGH 873,771 T9.538
Total Current Liabilities 231,549 9546, ) 1,58 846
Total Equity amd Curreent Liabilities 73416571 74,641 508 46, TTIARS

*Represents a provisson Tor estimated costs 10 be incurred m the bguidation of the sub=fumd. Refer 1o Note 16,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

13
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Ducusign Envelope I0: 6CT427FC-B4B8-4768-B£00-DBO4400F 3634
Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust

Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2024

DS Target Maturity S Target Maturity

HBetting Fund 20020-07 Setting Fund 2103

{Imy estimg in Cioldman Sachs {lmvesting in Gaoldnam Sach=

Carporale Bomsds) Corparate Homls)

(R3] Al %0 ALy

Unilt Class Unlt {lass Und Class Unkt Class

Mumber of Units in Issue b 673,50 1.263 481 QORT. 79 1,122 9463

Met Asset Value per Unit Class (USDY 16 65, 774.550% TAGBOATI GE AR 343 5,196,205

Net Aseet Value per Unit (USD) 95600 5.905" 7.536 4.627
Chae-1hay
Premijum Fund
Sy Ush AV JPY

Accumulating Maonthly Accumulating Aldonchly

Unin Class histribatian Uit {lass st buation

Umit € Tass Umit Class

Number of Units in Issue O 2732910 355005 1827, 705 133753
MNet Asset Value por Unit Class (USID) 16 200165837 3509 158 11,537 467 1,408,801
Net Asset Value per Unit {USD) 10L6T3 (LGS 6313 6027

*Represems Met Asset Volue per Unn Class for Unathalder dealing pumposes
~ Represents Met Asat Value per Unat for Unitholder dealing purposes,

Signed on behall of Wavsione Management Company (1E) Limited
Doewlgned by:

s s (—

Date: 11 June 2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023

NS Target Maturity IDAMS Targee Maturity

Serring Fand J020-07 Seiving Fund 2103
{Imvesting in Goldman  (Investing in Goldman e Dy
Sachs Corporate Bomds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premium Fund®
Asat As at As al
51 Devem her 2025 31 Devember 2023 31 Dhegem s 20025
MNotes UsD VS UsD
Current Asscis
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 2612
Towal Rewrn Basket Swaps - - 59,636,333
Perfommance-linked Motes 75487212 B3 860,833 .
Unrealised appreciaton on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracis . - 4.3 800
Cash 3 To64 1 65, TF 38528
Receivable for Fund Units sold - - 737,707
Oiher receivable - - 74,275
Total Current Asseis TR563.93 #3.926.542 61,430,703
Equity
Met assels atinibuiable to Unitholders 75,441,733 H2, 9559 766 6, TO3,675
Total Equity 16 TE 441,733 H21959. 766 6L, TIG6TS
Current Liahilitics
Financial liabilitses ai fair value
through profit or loss i
Unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracis - - 1,231
Disiribution fees payvable 5 33,755 34,19 39,178
ALFM fees pavable 5 47,104 74975 46,713
Owpanisiational expense pavable - - 13448
Pavable for Units repurchased 9 - 743 .
Pavable For mvestments purchased 2 - - Gl6 R0
Ohher payable 4 41.321 850,175 9.653
Total Current Liabilities 122,180 i, T T 27028
Total Equity amd Curvent Liabilities 75,563,913 £3.926.542 61 430,703

*The sub-fund launched on 12 September 2023,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023

IS Target Maturity IS Target Matariny
HBetting Fund 2020-07 Setting Fund 2103
{Imy estimg in Cioldman Sachs {Imvesting in CGaoldnan Sach=
Carporale Bomwls) Corparalte Homls)
(R3] Al %0 ALY
Unilt Class Umlt {lass Und Class Unkt Class
Mumber of Units in Issue & T32T 416 1.334.915 10370514 1,229 436
Mot Asset Value poer Unit Class (USI) 16 G7111.564 BE29.B65 77007 8E% SM51ATE
Met Asset Value per Unit (USD) 9159 6,240 TA2G 4,841
Chae-1hay
Premibum Fund®
81y Usn Y JPY
Accumulating Maonthly Accumulating Aldonchly
Uniin Class IHstribatiaon Uit € Tass Distii natios
Umit € lass Uit €lass
Number of Units in Issue @ 2329167 227 292 3791 430 1135470
MNet Asset Value por Unit Class (USI) 16 25642483 227803 26824 832 7956557
MNet Asset Value per Unit (USD) 1151 100,00 T.073 T007

*The sub-fund launched on 12 September 2023,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust
Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

%S Targer Manarity
Serving Famd H020007

A5 Target Manariy
Setting Fund 2105

{Imvesting in Goldman  {Investing in CGaoldman Chnae= Dy
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate HBonds) Fremiam Fumd
Far the linandal year Far the linancial vear Far the lnamncial year
erled eniled end il
51 Ddecem ber 2024 31 Decem ber 2024 31 December T0Z4
Motes UsD Usn (]
Income
Inigrest income -4, (W07 2632 16911
(hher income - - 2685
Met gain/{loss) on financial asseis at far
vitlue through profit or loss 2 3,001,921 1360918 545 RE0)
Total Net Incomel|Loss) EXER 1. 366,550 (530,280
Expenses
Distribution fees 3 (391,147 (41 5,968) (442,584
AlFM fees 34 {129, 2940 (T5.213) (155,0000)
Orpanisational expenses 3 - - (16,387)
Liguidation cosis provision® 13 { 50,0000 - -
(hher cxpenses 11 (36, 248) (63,081) (166, 632)
Total Operating Expenses {606, 685) (554.262) {780,603}
Met Operating Profiv{ Loss)
before Finance Cost amd Tax 2,400,243 812,288 (1. 310.853)
Finance Costs
Disrributions 1o Unitholders 10 - - [345.338)
Met Operating Profivi Loss) 2408, 243 12,288 (1656221
Total Comprehensive Profit{ Loss) 2A0P0, 243 H12,258 (1.656,221)

*Represents a provisson Tor estimated costs 1o be incurred m the bguidation of te sub=fuml. Refer 1o Note 16,

Income and cxpenses arose solely from continuing operations cxcepl for DMS Target Matunity Setting Fund
2020-07{Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds).

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust

Statement of Comprehensive Income {Continued )
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2023

%S Target Maturity
Setting Fand H020007

DS Target Matarity
Setting Fund 2103

{Imvesting in Goldman  {Investing in CGoldman Chnee-Diay
Sachs Corparate Honds) Sachs Corporate Bonds) Premium Fund®
Far the faancal year Faor the financial vear  For the nancal perod
epded wrled ended
31 Dhecem her 20X3 31 Do b 2023 31 December T023
Moles UsD Usn (1]
Income
Interest income 4,150 3564 18.015
Met gain on financial asscts at fair value
through profit or loss 2 3,370 326 2 500 645 2046, 583
Total Net Income 3374476 2E13.309 264,598
Expenses
Digtribution fees ] (407, 1823 (435,175 {124,239
AlIFM fees 514 (1152400 (123.163) (46, 713)
Crganisational expenses 5 - - {145,001y
(hher expenses 11 (33.086) (182,571) (20,805
Total Operating Expenses (556,01 08) {740,594y {332,757)
Met Operating Profit before Finance
Cost amd Tax 2RIR, 6K 1,772,301 1,751,841
Finance Cosis
Distribations 1o Unitholders 10 - - (%1820
Met Operating Profin 2E18368 1.772.300 1.4650.021
Total Comprehensive Profit 2 518,368 1,772, 34H) 1.450,021

*The sub-fund lounched on 12 September 2023,

Income and cxpenses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanving notes Form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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DALS Target Maturity
Setting Fumd 200007

{Investimg in Caldman Sachs{Investing in Goldman Sschs

Corporaie Hands)

For thee finansial vear eniled For the lnandal sear ended

31 Devembser 2024

%S Targee Marurity
Setving Famd 2103
Ume=Day
Premiun Fumd
Far the lnancial ycar onded
31 December 2024

Carparate Bomds)

3 December 2024

Vs "SIy ISy

Opening Net Assets attributable to

Unitholders T5. 441,733 H21.989. 766 G0, TO3,6TS
Progeeds of Units issped - - 14,637 04
Pavment for Units redeemed (4.0665.954) (10ET, 506) (28,009, 748)
Met increase/{(decrease ) in Met Asscls

attribatable 1o Unitholders from

operations 2 AR 243 B2 2ER (1.656.221)
Closing Net Assets attributable to

Unithalders T3R5 022 73,684,548 45,684,797

The accompanving notes form an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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DALS Targel Maturity

%S Targee Maturity

Setting Fund 203007 Settimg Famd 2103 Ome-Day
{Investimg in Ceoldman Sachs{Investing in Goldman Sschs Prenviam Fumd*®
Corporate Bands) Corparate Bamwds) For the linancial period
For the finanicial vear ended For the Rrancal vear endesd el
3 Deecember 2025 31 December 2023 i December 2023
LR H] ISy US1¥
Opening Net Assets atiributable o
Unitholders TRAZR,TST B 265,677 -
Proceeds of Linits issued - - 62, 1592 4
Pavment for Units redecmed (5,805,391 (3073211 (3, 138.746)
Mel increase in Net Asscts
attributable 1o Unitholders from
operalions 2RIZ368 1.772_3(H) 165002
Closing Net Assets attributable to
Unitholders T5.441.733 WI9350, 7646 GILTI3,6TE

*The sub-fund lounched on 12 September 2023,

The accompanving notes Form an integral part of these financial statements
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Inereased Decrease) m Total Comprehemsive
Profif Loss)

Adyustments o reconcile net mcome o net cash
provided by operating activities:

Met realised foseign exchange loss on linancial assets

argl lnancial habalabes

Met realised loss on Forward Foreign Currency
Contracts

Met realised loss on Foreign Currency Translations

Met realised (gaan} on Todn] Hetum Basket Swaps

Mel chinge m unrealissd appreciation on financial
azaets and labilties o fair vabee trough profit or
loss

Met chunge in wnrealised appreciotion on Total
Retum Basket Swaps

Mel chumge i wnrealised deprecintion on Forward
Forergn Curreney Comtricls

Sake of lnancial assets and labalitics @ Gair value
through profit of loss

Distributions o Unitholders

{Incremse) in receivable for mvestments sold

[ecremse in other recenvable

[nerense in distnbution fee pavable

{Decrcass) m AIFM lee payvable

{Decrease) i organisational fiee pavable

Increase in liquidation costs payvablc®

{Decrease) i payable for investments purchased

Imeremse in other pavable

Mot Cush Flow from Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Distmbutions to Unitholders

Proceeds of Units msoed
Payment for Units redeemed

Met Cash Flow out of Financing Activities

Met Inerease/(Deerease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents sl the beginning of the
finnncial year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of
the financial vear

*Represents a provisson Tor estimated costs 10 be incurred m the bguidation of te sub=fuml. Befer 1o Note 16,

DS Target Matwrity

1A IS Target Maturity

Setting Fund 2020.07 Setting Fund 2103
{Ivesting in Goldman  (Investing in Goldman One-Day
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bomsds) Premium Fund
For the finandal year For the financial vear Far the fimancial year
emiled ended endled
3 Decenuber 2024 3 December 2024 31 Decem ber 2024
LIS Usn USD
2409 245 B121.288 {1.656.221)
157,530 1.268.715 -
2GATRO32
- 20098
{1, 705,6:45)
(3,269 4600 (4,630,651 .
{1,928,1010)
1,485 4965
5185136 10684 64 1 14,277 867
- - 53518
(31.46T)
E E 74275
30,170 20485 1R 615
(16658 (62,98T) (20,879
- - (13.448)
00,0000 - -
- - (616805)
17,147 23 5046 0 ERE
4663137 Db, 126, 105 13,0402, (W0
(345,538
. . 15,034,322
(4637 244) {10087 H16) (27 952 902
(463724 (10087 163 (13, 263.918)
25,80F 38,680 [261.858)
76,6591 65,709 38,528
102,554 104,378 (223,330

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued )

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2023

DALS Target Matwrity

DS Target Maturity

Setting Fund 200007 Setting Fund 2103
{Investing in Goldman  (Investing in Ceoldman One-Day
Sachs Corporate Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bomds) Premium Faml*
For the financial year  For the financisl vear  For the finaneisl period
emiled anded ended
3 December 2023 31 December 2023 31 December 2023
UsD Usn UsD
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Inerease in Total Comprebensive Profin] Loss) 2R18 68 1,772,500 1,650,021
Adjustments to reconcile net msome o net cash
provided by operating oetivities:
Mel realised foreign exchange loss on linancil nssets
and Nnancial habilies [ Y 1,346,361 -
Mt realisad (gaind on Forward Foreign Currency
Conracts {100,692 )
Met realised loss on Foreign Curreney Translations - 2680
Met realised (gain} on Todal Retum Basket Swaps - (33,965
Met chumgte i wnrealised apprecintion on financial
assets and labiltises ot Gxir value through profit or
loss (3975 842y {3,856, (060 .
Met change in unrealised appreciation on Tolal
Retum Basket Swaps. - {971,973
Net chimge i wnrealised appresiotion on Forward
Forergn Curreney Comtricls {942 6207
Saledf Purchase ) of linancial assets and Hobiliaes o1
fair value through prolil of loss & 2005 3648 4] 500 (58,532.370
Distribuions to Unitholders - - B1.820
Decrease in receivable for investimenis sokl B927 - -
Decremsed Increase) m other receivable 13,463 415 (74.273)
{Decrense)Increase m disinbution fee pavable {1,643 {4,796 301TR
Incrense in AIFM fee pavable 37,085 {3 030 46713
Inerese in organizational fee payvable . - 13,448
Increase in pavable for investmients purchased - - GlGR0E
Increase in other payable 14,942 123,178 9653
Met Cash Flow from/fout af) Operating Activitles 5,726,181 1,936,901 (58, 195, 594)
Cash Flows (out of)/from Financing Activities
Distributions to Unitholders - (R1.820)
Procesds of Units issued - - 6] 434603
Fayment for Units redeenved (SR1GEN Y (3.072.974) (3,038, 746)
Mot Cash Flow (out ol Trom Financing Activities {5 M1 BRL) (3,072974) 58,234,127
Mot (Decreuse ) Incrense in Cash and Cuash
Equivalents {90,710} {136,073) IHER
Cash and cash equivalents o the beginning of the
flnanceal year period 167 401 il Pyicrd -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of
the financial vear/period Th,691 65,700 528

*The sub-fund lnunched on 12 September X023,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these linancial statements.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust {the “Trust™) was constiluted as an Irish umbrella Unit Trust organised
by the Manager and the Trustee under the Unit Trusts Act 1990 (the “Act™) on 3 June 2020, with the
Regisiered Office at 4th Floor, 35 Shelbourne Road. Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, Ireland. The Trust is
authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank™) as a Unit Trust pursuant o the Act.

The Trust is an umbrella fund which mav comprise different sub-funds, respectively (the sub-fund” or
together, the “sub-funds™) each with one or more Classes of Units, Each sub-fund mav be constiiuted
as an open-endead fund, an open-ended fund with limited liquidity or a closed-ended fund.

As at 31 December 2024, the Trust had three sub-funds in existence:

Commenced Operations

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman

Sachs Corporate Bonds) 28 Julv 2020
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs

Caorporaie Bonds) 30 March 2021
One-Day Premium Fund 12 September 2023

First two sub-funds offer two Unit Classes. the USD Unit Class and the AUD Unit Class. The third
sub-fund offers four Unit Classes, the USD Accumulating Umit Class, the USD Monthlv Distribution
Unit Class (1ogether the "USD Unit Classes"), the JPY Accumulating Unit Class and the JPY Monthly
Distribution Unit Class (iogether the "IPY Unit Classes™), The USD Monthlv Distnbution Unit Class
and the JPY Monthly Distnbution Unit Class (the "Monthlv Disinbution Unit Classes™) aims 1o pay
dividends to Unitholders, The Functional Currency of the sub-funds are United States Dollar (“USD™),
as detailed in Note 2 of the financial stalements on page 30,

DMS Targei Matuniy Seiiing Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporaie Bonds) is a Unit
Trust with a trust term of approximately five vears. The trest term refers to the penod from the
commencement of aperation on 28 Julv 2020 1o Fund Maturity Date (“Matunty Date”). The Maturity
Date 15 25 July 2025 or such other date as mav be determined by the Manager and notified 1o
Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and all remaming Units are
redeemed.

DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) is a Unit
Trust with a trust term of approximately ten vears. The trust term refers 1o the peried from the
commencement of operation on 30 March 2021 1o Fund Maturity Date. The Maturity Date is 31 March
2031 or such other date as mav be determined by the Manager and notified 1o Unitholders, being the
date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and all remaining Units are redeemed.

One-Diy Premium Fund 15 a Unit Trust with @ trust term of approximately ten vears. The trust term
refers (o the period from the commencement of operation on 12 September 2023 1o Fund Maturity Date
(“Maturity Date”). The Maturity Date is 31 August 2033 or such other date &z mav be determined by
the Manager and notified 1o Unitholders, being the date on which the term of the sub-fund expires and
all remaining Units are redeemed.

3

133/268



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

I, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies and estimation technigques adopted by the sub-funds are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The financial siatemenis of the sub-funds have been prepared in compliance wiih Financial Reporiing
Standard 102; “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of
drefand ("FRS 1027), accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland and Insh siatute comprising
the Unit Trust Act, 19410,

The format and certain wording of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained in
FRS 102 sp that, in the opinion of the Alternative Investiment Fund Manager (the “AIFM”), they morg
appropriately reflect the nature of the sub-funds’ business as an invesiment funds.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concemn basis, except for the financial
statements of DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) which has been prepared on a basis other than the going concern as the sub-fund will be put
inte higuidation after the 25 July 20235 Liguidation cost expenses expected 1o be incurred upon closure
of the sub-fund are expected o amount (o USD 50,0000 and have been accrued for in these linancial
statements. The Directors have made an assessment of the Trust"s ability 1o continue as a gomng concermn
and are satisfied that the Trust has the resources (o continue in operation for a period of af least 12
months from the date of approval of these linancial statements,

The preparation of linancial staements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the wse of estimates and
assumptiions thai afTect the amounis reported in the financial siaiements and accompanying noles. The
AlIFM believes thal the estimates utilized in linancial statementis are reasonable and prudent. Actual
results could differ from these estimates, Please refer to Note 12 (g) for Far Value Estimation
disclosures.

Investiment policy

DS Farger Marurity Setring Fund 2020-07 (Tevesiing in Goldman Sachs Corporaie Bords) and DMS
Targer Maturing Setiing Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bovds)

In order io achieve its invesimeni objeciive, the sub-funds will invesi all of ihe proceads from the issue
of Unitg (after deducting therefrom the costs and expenses in connection with the establishment of the
sub-funds and the offering of Units and a reserve for other charges and expenses pavable out of the
aszets of the sub-funds) in cenain performance-linked notes (the “Notes™) to be issued bv Luminis 11
Limited. special purpose vehicle domiciled in the Cavman Islands (the “MNotes Issuer™). Special purpose
vehicles are companies whose purpose is 1o conduct business such as the issuance of bonds, and are
generally uged in the secuntisation of assets and the issuance of structured notes.

The Notes will provide the sub-funds and each Unit Class with the following exposures:

1. Exposure 10 a portfolio of fixved income instruments (the “GS Bonds™) issued by The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc (the ~“G& Bonds lssuer”) and denominated in the currency of the relevant
Class of Units (the “Fixed Portion”™); and

2. Exposure o a svnthetic porifolio which provides a retumn which is linked 1o the performance of
a basket of certain investment funds (the “Active Portion™ or the “Strategyv™).

24
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

L, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued )

Investment policy (Continued)

DVES Farges Marrity Setting Fundd 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds) and DAMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Tnvesting in Goldnan Sachs Corporate Bonds) (Continued)

The Strategy consists of a number of investment funds (the "Underlving Funds®) having individual
strategies and cash minus necessary costs 10 compose a basket, and aims for stable excess retums in
vanouws environments, The weaghtings 1o be allocated 10 each Undeédyving Fund will be determined
upon launch in order to ensure that the risk level is equally distributed between the Underlving Funds
(the “Underlying Basket™),

Chre-fay Premium S

In order to achieve its investment objective, the sub-fund will generally invest all of the proceeds from
the issue of Units (after deduction of costs and expenses) in one or more total retum swaps (each a
“Total Retum Swap”) to be traded with Goldman Sachs Intemational Bank (the “Swap Counterparty ™)
pursuant to a swap agreament (the “Swap Agreement’”).

The Total Return Swap will be a fullv-funded swap and will provide the sub-lfund with exposure 1o the
Strategy, as deseribed in the Supplement to the Prospectus dated 9@ August 2023 The sub-Tfund's
exposure 1o the Total Return Swap will be (1) mcreased in the event that the sub-fund receives net
subseriptions and (i) decreased in the event that the sub-fund receives net redemptions, on a particular
Subscripton Day / Redemption Day. The performance of the sub-fund will be determuned by the
performance of the Strategy.

In addinon 1o entening into the Total Rewurn Swap, the sub-fund may hold cash pending investment,
the return of monies to investors or (o allow the sub-fund 1o meet certain ongoing charges and expenses
which may anse in the course of operations of the sub-fund.

The sub=fund max accepl collateral in the context of the Total Returm Baskel Swap. Such collateral
will be of an appropriate type for the given transaction and the particular counterpanty and may be in
the Form of cash or debl, For detmls of the non-cash collateral réceived by the sub-Nund at the 31
December 2024, refer to Appendix [11 1o these financial statements,

The Investment Manager intends 1o hedge the foreign currency exposure of the JPY Unit Classes in
order that investors in such classes receive returns substantially in line with that which would be
achieved in the Functional Currency. The financial insirumenis used io implemeni such siralegies will
be aszets [ liabilities of the sub-fund as a whaole. However, such transactions will be clearly attributable
to the relevant JPY Unit Class and the gans / losses on and the costs of the relevant fnancial
instruments will accrue solely 1o the relevamt IPY Unit Class.

Accounting lor Invesiments

Investiment transactions are recorded on a trade date basis. Realised gains and losses on sales of
invesimenis are calculaied on a “first in - firsi oul™ (“FIFO7) basis. The associated foreign exchange
movements between the date of the purchase and the date of the sale of financial assets are included in
net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

L, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued )

Valuation of Investments

On initial application of FRS 102, in accounting for its financial instruments a reporiing entity s
required 1o apply either ap the full requirements of FRS 102 relating (0 Basic Financial Instruments and
Other Financial Instruments, b) the recognition and megsurement provisions of 1A% 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and anly the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating 1o Basic Financial
Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, of ¢) the recognition and meisurement provisions of
Imernational Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS7) 9 Financial Instrumemnis and only the disclosure
requirements of FRS 102 relating 1o Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, The
sub-funds have chosen o implement b) the recognition and measurement provision of LAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating 1o Basic Financial
Insirumenis and Other Financial Instrumenis.

In accordance with FRS 102 the sub-funds have classified all of its investiments as financial assels or
labilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, Investmenis are initially recognised al the fair
value of the consideration given, with transaction costs for such instruments being recognised directly
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Investments are subsequently remeasured at Fur value at
the financial vear end. Purchases and sales of investments are recogmised on trade date — the date on
which the sub-funds commit to purchase or sell the asset.

Foreign exchange hedging may be utilised for the benefit of a particular Hedged Class and its cost and
related liabilities and'or benefits shall be for the accoumt of such Class only, Accordingly, anv
appreciabion or depreciation of the Net Assel Value of the sub-funds resulting from expenses. income,
gains and losses that are attributable 1o any foreign exchange hedging in respect of a Hedged Class
shall be atinibutable solelv to the Hedged Class to which it relates

The value of the assets of each sub-funds shall be determined in respect of each Valuation Date as
follows:

(a)  securities, including debt and equity securities, which are quoted, listed or traded on or under
the rules of any market will be valued at the closing bid price as at each Valuation Point, IT the
security is normally quoted, histed or traded on or under the rules of more than one market, the
relevant market wall be that which ‘Wavstone Management Company (1E) Limited (the
“Manager”) determine provides the furest eritenon of value for the security, I prices for a
secunty quoded, listed or traded on the relevant market are not available at the relevant ime or
are unrepresentative in the opinion of the Manager such security will be valued at such value
as will be estimated with care and good faith as the probable realisation value of such security
by the Manager:

ib) amy security, including debt and equity securities, which is not normally quoted, listed or
traded on or under the rules of a market or in respect of which the Manager determines that
ihe closing bid price as sel oul above is noi represeniative of ils far marked value, will be
valuad at its probable realisation value as determined with care and in good faith by the
Manager. The performance linked notes held are priced on a dailv basis by a prnice received
from Goldman Sachs:
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued )

Valuation of Investments (Continued)

{ch denvative instruments including swaps, interest rate fulures contracis and other linancial
{utures contracts which are traded on a market will be valued at the setllement price as
determined by the relevant market at the close of business on that market on the Valuation
Date, provided that where it is nol the practice of the relevant market 1o quote a settlement
price, or il a settlement price is nol available for any reason, such instruments will be valued
at their probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Manager. The
Total Return Basket Swaps are valued using prices provided daily by the Swap Counterparty,
without adjustment.

{d) credit default swap instruments which are not dealt on a market will be valued on each
Valuation Date al the evaluated mean by reference io freelv available markel quotaiions
supplied by an independent pricing agent or at the price obiained from the counterparty or a
party appointed by the Manager. All other denvative instruments which are not dealt on a
market will be valued on each Valuation Date at the hid price bv reference 1o freelv available
market quodations supplied by an independent pricing agent or at the price obiained from the
counterpariy or a parly appointed by the Manager;

(e) Umits in collective investment schemes will be valued on the basis of the latest published Met
Asset Value of such Units, If such prices are wmavailable, the Units will be valued at their
probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by the Manager;

in assels denominated in a currengy other than in the Functional Currency of the relevant sub-
fund shall be converted inio the Funchonal Currency at the rate (whether official or otherwise)
which the Manager deems appropniate in the circumsiances;

i) cash deposits and similar assets will be valued at their face value together with acerued imerest
unless in the opinion of the Manager any adjusiment should be made to reflect the Fair value
thereof and

ih) realised and wnrealised gains and losses on invesiments represent the difference between
disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost. Realised and unrealised gans and losses on
investments anising during the fnancial vear are dealt within the Statement of Comprehensive
Ineame.

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

The One-Day Premium Fund may enter into Forward Foreign Curreney Contract in connection with
settling planned purchases or sales of secunties 1o hedge the currency exposure associated with some
or all of a sub-fund’s secunties or as a part of an investment sirategy. A Forward Foreign Currency
Contract is an agreement between two parties (o buy and sell a currency at a set price on a future date.
The fair value of a Forward Foreign Currency Contract Nuetuates with changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. Forward Foreign Currency Contracts are marked 1o market dailv and the change in
value is recorded by the sub-fund as an unrealised gun or loss, Realised gains or losses equal 1o the
difference between the value of the contract at the time it was opened and the value at the time it was
closed are recorded upon delivery or receipt of the curreney or, if a Forward Foreign Currency Contract
15 offset by entering into another Forward Foreign Currency Contract with the same broker, upon
settlement of the net gain or loss,
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

I, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued )

Offsetting

Fimancial assets and lighilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position when there was a legally enforceable nght 10 offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to seltle on a net basis or realise the asset and setile the laklity simulianecus|y,

As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, none of the financial assets and liabilities are ofTset
in the Statement of Financial Position,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
Met gain/{loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Usp UsD
Realised gain on investments and foreign exchange 3,008 7,645
Realised (loss) on investments and foreign exchange {2600,547) {13,161)
Tatal net realised (loss) (257,53%9) (605.516)
(Decrease) in unrealised appreciation on invesimenis
and foreign exchange (903) (121}
Increase in unreahised depreciaiion on invesimenis
and foreign exchange 3,270,303 3,975,903
Total net inerease in unrealised
appreciation/(depreciation) 3,269,460 3.975.842
Met gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 3011921 3370326

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Met gain/{loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

USD USD
Realised gan on investments and forgign exchange 4,766 2363
Realised (loss) on investments and foreign exchange (3.274.501) (1.3458.724)
Tatal net realised (loss) (3,269,735) (1,346,361)
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued )

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

(Continued)

Met gainf{loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

UsD UsD
(Decrease) in unreahised appreciation on invesiments
and foreign exchange (250) (302)
Increase in unrealised depreciation on investmenis
and foreign exchange 4,630,903 3,856,308
Total net inerease in unrealised
appreciation/{depreciation) 4,630,653 3,556,006
Met gain on Minancial assets at Fair value
through profit or loss 1,360.91% 1,509,645

One-Day Premium Fund

Met gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value thirough profit or loss

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

UsD UsD
Realised gan on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts 6ud (45 103,127
Realised (loss) on Forward Foreign Currency Contracts (2,742,077) (2,435)
Realised gain on Foreign Curreney Translations 1 54,060 197,237
Realised (loss) on Foreign Currency Translations (174, 758) (199.917)
Realised gain on Total Return Basket Swaps 1. 705,045 33,5909
Total net vealised (loss)gain (992 485) 131,981
{Decrease)Increase in unrealised appreciation on
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts (B56,509) 943 R4
(Decrease) in unrealised depreciation on Forward
Foreign Currency Contracis (628 987) (1,231
Increase in unrealised appreciation on Total Retum
Baskel Swaps 1,928,101 971,973
Taotal net increase in unrealised
appreciation/{depreciation) 442,605 1,914,602
Met (loss)gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (549.880) 2,046,583
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued )

Foreign Exchange Translation

Functiomal and Presentation Currency

The functional and presentatonal currency of each sub-fund 15 US Dollar ("USD™), This is considered
to be the currency of the primarny economic environment of each sub-fund.

Tranmzactions and Halances

Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the sub-funds are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the financial vear end date.
Tramsactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the sub-funds are translated into the
functional currency al the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Gains and losses on
foreign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in
determining the result for the financial vear. Proceeds from issuance and amounts paid on repurchase
of Units are ranslated at the rates prevailing an the dates of the transactions.

Transaction costs

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised at fair value,
Tranzaction cosis are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses ansing
from changes in the faur value of the financial assets or Ninancial liabilines at fair valwe through profit
or loss catezony are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial vear in which
they arse

Receivable for investments sold/Payable for investments purchased

Receivable for invesimenis sold/Pavable for invesimenis purchased represeni pavables for secuniies
purchased and receivables for securities sold that have been contracted for but not vel delivered on the
Statement of Financial Position date.

Expenses
Expenses are recognised on the accrual basis.

Met Asset Value Per Unit
The Net Assel Value per Unit is caleulated by dividing the Total Net Assets of the sub-funds by the
number of Units in issue. All Units are issued and repurchased at this price,

The Umits can be put back into the sub-funds a1 any tme for cash equal to a proportional share of the
sub-funds” Net Asset Value, The Umit is carried at the repurchase amount which is pavable at the
financial vear end date if the Unitholder exercised the nght 1o put the Unit back in the sub-funds.

Taxation

Under current law and practice, the sub-funds qualifv as an investment undertaking as defined m
Section 7398 of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. The sub-funds are not chargeable 1o
Irish tax on its income or capital gains. However, Insh 1ax can arise on the happening of a “chargeable
eventl”. A chargeable event includes amv disinbution pavments o Unitholders or any encashment,
repurchase, redemplion, translfer or cancellation of shares and amy deemed disposal of Units for Irish
lax purposes ansing as a resull of holding Units in the sub-funds for a perod of eight vears or more,

30

140/268



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

I, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Mot will anse in respect of chargeable events in respect of 2 Unitholder whoo

{1y is an Exempl Insh Investor (as defined in Section 739D of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997,
as amended) who has provided the sub-funds with the necessany signed statutory declarations;
or

(1) is neither Insh resident nor ordinanly resident in Ireland for 1ax purposes at the time of the
chargeable event, provided, in each case, that the necessarv signed statutory declaration in
accordance with Schedule 2B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended is held by the
sub-funds

Capital gaing and interest recerved by the sub-funds may be subject 1o non-recoverable withholding
tax in the countries of origin.

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cash comprises current deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes
in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting shon-term cash commitments rather than of
investment or other purposes.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
31 December 2024

Held by: UsD
BBH 200
ANZ, London 19,707
Sumitoma Miusu Trust Bank, London 82667
102,584

31 December 2023

Helel by USD
BBH 188
BNP Paribas. Paris 21.537
IPMorgan Chase, New York 54 506
Th.691

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporaie Bonds)
31 December 2024

Held by: LUSD
BBH 412
AMZ, London 9781
Sumitomo Mitsu Bank Corporation, Tokvo 04,205
104,398
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

3. CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

{Continued)

31 December 2023
Held by: UsD
BBH 27
AME, Hong Kong 9385
Sumitoma Mitsu Trust Bank, London A6 107

65,709

One=Day Premium Fund

31 December 2024

Held by: UsSD
BBH (223437
Sumitoma Mitsu Trust Bank, London 107

(223,330)

31 December 2023

Held by: LsD
BBH 1.515
JPMorgan Chase, New York 37.013

35,528

4. FEES PAYABLE

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD UsD

Professional fees 44,497 35,550
Service expenses 1,206 637
Miscellaneous expenses 12,765 5134
58408 41,321

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
31 December 2024 31 December 2023

USD UsD

Fixed operating expenses 854,167 845,024
Service expenses 1,680 1,124
Miscellaneous expenses 17,924 4,027
873771 B2D,175
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4. FEES PAYABLE (Continued)

One-Day Premium Fund

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

USD UsD

Legal expenses 42,798 -
Registration expenses 29431 6,630
Service expenses 307 1l
Miscellaneous expenses 1,002 301z
TH538 9,653

5. FEES

The fees and charges pavable 1o the Manager and the Investment Manager, which will applv 1o each
sub-fund or 1o different Classes of Unit for each sub-fund, are specified in the relevant Supplement.

Management and Investment Management Fees

In respect of s provision of managemend services (o the sub-funds, the Manager recenves a
management fee (the “Management Fee™) on a sliding scale al a maximum rate of 0.15% per annum
of the Net Asset Value of the sub-funds, The Management Fee is subject 1o an annual minimum fee of
LSO 125,000 per annum for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {(Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Matunity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and LUSD 153,000 for One-Day Premium Fund. The Management Fee accrues al
each Valuation Point and is paid monthly in arrears together with any reasonable and documented out
of pockel expenses ingurred by the Manager in the performance of its dulies that are not covered by
the Management Fee,

The Manager 15 responsible for paving the fees and expenses of the Invesiment Manager, the
Administrator, the Trustee and the Auditor (for the annual audit onlv). For the financial vear ended
31 December 2024, the Manager eamed a fee of USD 129,290 (31 December 2023; USD 115,240) of
which USD 30,446 (31 December 2023 USD 47104 ) was outstanding a1 financial vear end for DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), USD 75,213
(31 December 2023, USD 123,163y of which USD 11,988 (31 December 2023: USD 749735 was
outstanding at financial vear end for DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds) and USD 155,000 (31 December 2023 USD 46,713) of which USD 25,5834
(31 December 2023 USD 46,713) was outstanding at finangial vear end One-Day Premium Fund, For
the financial vear ended 31 December 2024, Management Fee of DMS Targel Maturity Setting Fund
2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) was lower than minimum fee of USD 125,000
due 1o Management Fee waiver of USD 10,587 and additional reduction of USD 41,666,
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

5. FEES (Continued)

Disiribution Fees

The Manager has appointed SMBC Trust Bank Lid (the “Disinbutor™) as the distnbutor in Japan,
responsible for purchasing the Units from the Manager and completing subscnption orders placed by
investors i Japan (onlv) in accordance with Japanese law. Distribution lees of 0.33%% per annum of
Met Assel Value for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Matuniy Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and 0.80% per annum for One-Diay Premium Fund are pavable 1o the Distributors
on a per Unit basis. For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024, the Distribution fee incurred was
USD 391,147 (31 December 2023: USD 407,182) for DMS Targei Matuniy Setiing Fund 2020-07
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), oul of which USD 63,925 was pavable at financial
vear end (31 December 2023 USD 33,7535), USD 415 968 (3] December 2023: USD 435175) for
DMS Target Maturitv Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), out of
which USD 63,681 was pavable al financial vear end (31 December 2023 USD 34,1963 and
USD 442584 (31 December 2023: USD 120,239 for One-Day Premium Fund, out of which
USD 62813 (31 December 2023 USD 39.178) was pavable atl financial vear end.

Administrator and Trustee Fees

The Admimstrator and Trustee 15 entitled 1o receive fees calculated as a percentage of the Net Assel
Value of each sub-fund for the provision of administration and trustee services respectively. The fees
of the Administrator and the Trustee are charged out of the Management Fee received by the Manager
or out of the assets of the relevant sub-fund as may be specified in the relevant Supplement. The fees
and the expenses of the Administrator and Trustee are pavable monthly in arrears, and are calculated
at a rate of 0,04% for the first USD 1 hillion of the azgregate Met Asset Value of the sub-funds of the
Trust, (L035% on the nexi USD 1.5 billion and 6.03% above USD 2.5 billion. The Admimsirator and
Trustee are also entitled to receive additional fees from the sub-funds to cover any reasonable and
documented out-of-pocket expenses,

Agent Securities Company fees

The Agent Secunties Company in Japan is entitled to an annual fee rate of 0.01% of the Net Assels of
the sub-funds. This fee is pavable monthly in arrears and is acerued on a daily basis. Any reasonable
disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Agem Securities Company for client
services carned out on behalf of the sub-funds are bome by the sub-funds, For the financial vear ended
31 December 2024, the Agent Secunities Company fee incurred was USD 7,380 (31 December 2023;
USDy 7,685) for DMS Target Matunity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds), out of which USD 1,200 was pavable at financial vear end (31 December 2023: USD 637),
USD 78459 (31 December 20235 USD 8,211 for DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing
in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), out of which USD 1,680 was pavable at financial vear end
(31 December 2023 USD 1,124) and USD 5,532 (31 December 2023 USD 1,503) for One-Day
Premium Fund, out of which USD 307 (31 December 2023: USD 11) was pavable al inancial vear
end.

Auditor's Remuneration

The statutory audit fee (excluding value-added 1ax and owt-of-pocket expenses incurred by the auditor
in connection with their audit work), which is pad by the Manager on behalf of the sub-fund, for the
financial vear amounted to USD 36,524 (31 December 2023 USD 36.943), There were no other
assurance services, tax advisory services or other non-audit services pad 1o the Statutony Auditors
during the fnancial vear ended 31 December 2024 or dunng the fnancial vear ended
31 December 2023,
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

5. FEES (Continued)

Establishment and Organisational Expenses

The estabhishment and orgamsanonal expenses (including expenses relating (o the drafting of the
Prospectus, the negotiation and preparation of the matenial contracts, the printing of the Prospectus and
the related marketing material, and the fees and expenses of s professional advisers) incurred
commected with the mital offering of Units in respect of the sub-lunds are not expected 10 exceed
EUR 25,000 for DMS Target Matunity Setting Fund 202007 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds), USD 125,000 for DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 165,000 for One-Day Premium Fund.

The financial statement MNet Assel Walue per Unit 15 calculated with orgamsational expenses being
expensed 1o the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which totaled USD 16,387 (31 December 2023:
USDy 145, 000) for One-Dine Premium Fund. For the purpose of calculating the Net Asset Value per
Uit for Unithholder dealing, organisational expenses are being amortised over the first three linancial
vears of the hifetime of the Funds. USD 958413 (31 December 2023 USD 130.447) for One=Day
Premium Fund was amoriised in the Unitholders calculation for the financial vear ended 31 December
2024, Organizational expenses for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman
Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) (31 December 2023: USD 57 23 1) were [ully amonised for the financial year ended
31 December 2024,

Fixed Operating Expenses

The 2103 Fund incurs certain minimum operating expenses (being the mimimum Management Fees)
during the life of the Fund to the Fund Maturity Date {(the “Fixed Operating Expenses™). In order to
ensure that Unitholders are wreated as fairly as possible with respect 1o such Fixed Operating Expenses
(and to ensure that in the event of redemptions by Unitholders prior 1o the Fund Maturity Date,
remaining Unitholders do not bear a higher proponion of the Fixed Operating Expenses). the Fund has
calculated the Fixed Operating Expenses and such Fixed Operating Expenses shall be amontised over
ihe firsi 3 vears of the Fund.

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024, the Fixed Operaiing Expenses incurred was
USD 29976 (31 December 2023 USD 163.519) for DMS Target Mawrity Setting Fund 2103

(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), oul of which USD 854,167 was pavable at financial
vear end (31 December 2023 USD 845.024),
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

& FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

The following tables detail the categories of fnancial assets and Onancial Latalines held by the
sub-lunds as a1 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,

IDALS Target Maturity

IINIS Target Matsrity

Setting Fund 205007 Setting Fund 2103
{Investing im Goldman {(Investing in Goldman U= Dy
Sachs Corporate Bandsh Sachs Corporate Honds) Promium Fand
A at As an REF 1
31 Decensber 2024 31 Dhecom ber 2024 31 December 2024
VS LS 1]
Financial assets ai fair value through
pridit or loss
Towal Rewrn Basket Swaps - . 46 204,082
Perfomance-linked MNotes T3I398T7 74,537,110 -
Unrcalised appreciation on Forward
Forcign Currency Contracis = - 87351
Total Financial asseis ai fair value
through profit or loss 73313987 T4.537.110 46,361 433
Fimancial liabilitics at fair value through
profit or loss
Unrealised depreciaion on Forward
Fereign Currency Contracis . . 630218
Total Financial liabilitics af air value
through profit or loss - - 630,218
DALS Target Matarity  DMS Targes Maturiy
Setting Fund 202007 Setting Fund 2103
(Ivesting im Goldman  {Investing in Goldman Ume-Day
Sachs Corporaie Bonds) Sachs Corporate Bands) Premilang Fuamd
M at As at Ms at
31 December 2023 31 Dhocem ber 2023 H December 2023
Vs UsD LS
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Total Rewmn Basket Swaps . . 636,333
Perfommance-linked Motes T3.487.222 #3860 833 -
Unrealised appreciation on Forward
Forcign Cwrrency Contracts - - Q43 B
Total Financial asseis ai fair value
through profit or loss T5ART 222 BIRG0H33 GOLER0,193
Financial liabilities at fair value through
prifit or loss
Unrealised depreciatzon on Forward
Forcign Currency Contracis - . 1.231
Total Financial liabilitics at Fair value
through profil or loss . = 1,231
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7. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The sub-funds are required 1o disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the
Statement of Financial Position o enable users of the nancial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements on its financial position for recognised assets and liabilities.
These recognised assets and liabilines are denvative mstruments that are either subject 10 an
enforceable master netling arrangement o sumilar agresment or meet set-ofT cnlena

For financial reporting purpose, the sub-funds do not ofTset denvative assets and denivative liabilines
in the Statement of Financial Position. Amounts which cannot be offset, but which could be settled net
under the terms of master netting agreements i certain conditions arise, and collateral received or
pledzed, are presented in the iables below:

One-Day Premium Fund
3 December 2024

Assets subject to Amounts Cash  Sccurity Net
masier netting available  collateral  collateral  Amount of
agrecmaent for offset pleded pledged assets
Derivative Assels usm usn UsD UsD usp

Forward Foreign Currency
Comracts 87,351 (BT.351) - - -
Teval Retum Basket Swaps 465304082 - - = di 204 082
46,381,433 {87,351} - 46,2042

Liabilitics

subject to master Amounis Cash  Scourity Net
netting available  collateral  collateral  Amount of
agreement for offset received  received liahilitics
Derivative Liabilities Us usD UsD UsD UsSD

Forward Forgign Currency
Coniracls GI0ZIE (B7.351) - - 542 867
630,218 (87,351} - - S42H67T

31 December 2023

Assets subject to Amounts Cash  Security Net
wasler nelling available  eollateral  collateral  Amount of
agreement for offset pledged  pledeed assels
Derivative Assels Us usn UsD USD Usp

Forward Forcign Currcncy
Contracts 943 860 (1L.231) - - 42620
Toial Retum Baskei Swaps 50.636,333 - - 54636333
GILSR0,193 {1,231} - GILETE. G2
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

7. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued

One-Day Premium Fund (Continued)
31 December 2023 (Continued )

Liabilities

subject to master Ampunis Cash Security Net

netting available  collateral  collateral  Amount of

Agrecment Tor oifset receivedl received limhilitics

Derivative Liabilities LS UsD UsSD USIx UsD
Farward Foreign Currency

Coniracts 1.231 (1.231% - - -

1,231 (1,231) - - -

5 SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

There were no sofl commission arrangements entered into during the Gnancial vear ended 31 December
2024 (31 December 2023 nil ).

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REFURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The following Unit Classes were available for subscription duning the Initial Offer Period for DMS
Targei Maiuriiy Setting Fund 2020-07 {Invesiing in Goldman Sachs Corporaie Bonds) and DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds):

Class Currency Initial Minimum Minimum Minimum
Denomination | OfMer Initial Subsequent Redem piion
Price Subscription | Subscription Amaunt
per Unit IMinimum Holding
USD Unit . .
UsD UsD 1o LISD 150,040 MIA 1 Unit
Class
AUD Unit . . . .
Class AUD ALD 10 AUD 200,000 MNSA 1 Unit

Investors must subsenbe into a Class i the currency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
pavments are also made in the currency i which the relevant Class 15 denominated,

Following the end of the Initial OfTer Period, it is not anticipated that funher subscrnptions mto the sub-
funds will be accepted, save that the Directors may, in their sole discretion, decide to declare a
Subscription Day on any Business Dav. In such circumstances, Units in the sub-funds will be available
for subscnption at the Net Assel Value per Umi (less any duties and charges) on the relevant
Subscription Day and the Dirgctors will confirm detauls of the relevant Subscription Cut-00T Time and
date by which settlement should be made in respect of anv such subscription,

A Unitholder may submit a redemption reguest, in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submitting a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemption Cut-O0T
Time, Unitg will be redeemed at the Net Asset Value per Unil of the relevant Unit Class on the relevant
Redemption Day. The ageregate redemption proceeds pavable 10 a Umitholder will be rounded down
io the nearest whole USD 0001, in the case of the USD Unil Class and AUD 0,01, in the case of the
AUD Unit Class. The benefit of any such roumding will be retained for the account of the sub-Tunds,
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

& UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued )

For the purposes of calculating the redemption price of a Unit, the Trustee andfor the Manager may
deduct From the Net Asset Value per Unit an amount which wihey consider(s) o be an appropriate
allowance to reflect fiscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the sub-funds
in realising assets or closing out positions to provide sub-funds 1o meel redemplion requests on a
partcular Redemption Day.

It iz generallv expected that redemplion proceeds will be circulated 1o Unithelders within 5 Business
Davs of the relevant Redemption Day.

All remaining Units in the sub-funds will be compulzonily repurchased on the Funds Maturity Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be sent 1o Unitholders within 5 Business Davs of redemption,

The following Unit Classes were available for subscription duning the Initial Offer Peried for One-Day
Premium Fund:

Class Currency Initial Offer Minimum Initial | Minimuam Minimum
Denomination | Price Subscription Subsequent Redenm plion
per Unit Subscription | Amount
IMinimum
Huolding
LS
Accumulating | USD LISD 10 LS 150,000 M/A 1 Unit
Linit Class
USD Monthly
Distribution UsD USD 10 LISDy 150,000 MN/A 1 Unit
Lnit Class
JPY
:tﬂumulaﬁng Iy JPYO 1000 JPY LSOO, T N/A I Uit
Linit Class
JPY Maonthly
Distribution Iy JPY 1,000 JPY | 50,000, (W00 NiA 1 Unit
Unit Class

Investors must subsenbe into a Class in the currency in which that Class is denominated. Repurchase
pavments are also made in the currency in which the relevant Class is denominated,

Following the end of the Intial Offer Period, Units i the sub-fund will be available for subscnption
al the MNet Asset Value per Unit (less anv duties and charges) on the relevant Subscription Day.
Completed subscription applications should be submiited by the Subscription Cut-Off Time in
accordance with the requirements of the Prospectus. Cleared settlement monies are required 1o be
forwarded on the third Business Day falling afier the relevant Subscription Day,
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued)

A Unitholder may submit a redemption reguest, in accordance with the requirements in respect of any
Redemption Day, by submitting a redemption request in advance of the relevant Redemption Coi-O0T
Time, Units will be redeemed at the Net Asset Value per Unit of the relevant Unit Class on the relevant
Redemption Day. The aggregate redemption proceeds pavable 1o a Unitholder will be rounded down
1o the nearest whole USD 0001, in the case of the USD Unit Classes and JPY 1, in the case of the JFY
Unit Classes. The benefit of any such rounding wall be retaned for the account of the Fund. For the
purposes of calculating the redemption price of a Unit, the Trustee and/or the Manager may deduct
from the Met Asset Value per Unit an amount which itthey consider(s) to be an appropnate allowance
to reflect Niscal and sale charges which would be incurred for the account of the Fund in realising assets
or closing oul positions 1o provide funds to meet redemplion requests on a particular Redemption Day.

It iz generallv expectad that redemplion proceeds will be circulated 1o Unitholders within 5 Business
Davs of the relevant Redemption Day.

All remaining Units in the sub-funds will be compulsonily repurchased on the Funds Maturity Dates
and the proceeds of repurchase will be sent to Unitholders within 5 Business Davs of redemption.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
USD Unit AUD Umnit USIr Unit AUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
MNumbers of Units cutstanding at
the beginning of financial vear 7327416 1,334,915 T35 860 1,395,373
Mumber of Units issued - - - -
Mumber of Units redeemed (453.615) (T1.434) {608, 450) (B0.458)
Numbers of Units outstanding
at the end of financial year 6,873,501 1,263,481 7527416 1334915

DM Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
USD Unit AUD Unit USD Unit AUD Unit
Class Class Class Class
Numbers of Units outstanding a1
the beginning of financial year 10,370,514 1,220,436 10,802,722 1,238,303
Mumber of Unis issued - - - -
Mumber of Units redeemed (1,282,715} {1046,473) (432,208) (%957)
Numbers of Lnits outstanding
at the end of financial year 9,087,799 1,122,963 10,370,514 1.229.436
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

9. UNITS ISSUED AND REPURCHASED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued)

One-Day Premium Fund
31 December 2024

UsSD UsSD JPY JPY
Accumulating Monthly Accumulating Monthly
Unit Class  Distribution LUnit Class  Distribution
Unit Class Unit Class
Numbers off Units cutstanding a
the beginning of financial vear 2,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470
Murmber of Unils issued 1,052,879 210 212,751 2571
Mumber of Units redeemed (B, 1360) (91,377} (2,176,470) (914,28 8)
MNumbers of Units outstanding
at the end of linancial year 2,732,910 I55,005 1,827,705 233,753
31 December 2023
UsSD UsSD JPY JPY
Accumulating Monthly Accumulating Monthly
Unit Class  Distribution LUnit Class  Distribution
Unit Class Unit Class
Mumbers of Unitz cutstanding at
the beginmng of financial
period - - - -
Mumber of Units issued 2359703 227202 4,214,704 1,135,470
Number of Units redeemed (30,3306) - (423,334) -
Numbers of Linits outstanding
at the end of financial period 1,329,167 227,292 3,791,430 1,135,470

Pavable for sub-fund Units repurchased as at 31 December 2024 is presented in the Statement of
Fimancial Position and amounts (o USD 28,710 (31 December 2023: USD nil ) for DMS Target Maturity
Senting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds), USD 7.5201(31 December 2023:
USD 7,430 for DMS Targei Matuniy Seiting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporaie
Bonds) and USD 66,846 (3] Decernber 2023 USD rul) for One-Dav Premium Fund.

10, DISTRIEUTION POLICY

The disirnbution policy for the sub-funds will be determined by the Manager from time o ime and set
oul in the relevant Supplement.

The distribution policy of DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and DMS Target Matunty Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) is not to make distnbutions to Unitholders but instead 1o reinvest all the sub-fund's
net income and realised capital gains. Accordingly, an investment in the sub-fund mav not be suitable
for investors seeking current retums,

Any dividend paid on a Unit of the sub-funds that has not been claimed within six vears of s
declaration will be forfeited and will be paid for the benefit of the sub-funds, Mo interest will be paid
on any dividend,
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

10, DISTRIBUTION POLICY (Continuwed)

One-Day Premium Fund do not intend to declare dividends in respect of the USD Accumulating Unit
Class or the JPY Accomulating Uit Class. Any disinbutable profits relating to such Unit Classes wall
remain in the sub-fund's assets and be reflected in the Net Asset Value of such Unit Classes.

The sub-fund intends o declare dividends, in an amowt 10 be determined by the Direclors, in respect
ol the USD Maonthly Distribution Unit Class and the JPY Momthly Distribution Unit Class on a monthly
basis. The dividends in respect of such Unit Classes will be declared and paid on the fGifth calendar day
of each month, provided that if the fifth calendar dav of a relevant month 15 not a Business Day, the
dividends shall be declared and paid on the next Business Day following the fifth calendar day of the
moath (the "Dividend Declaration Date").

Dunng the financial vear ended 31 December 2024 there were no distributions declared for DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 202007 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and DMS
Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) and for the One-
Dav Premium Fund amounted 1o USD 345 338 (31 December 2023 USD 81 820).

11. OTHER EXPENSES
DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD LsD

Professional fees 12238 26,001
Service expenses 7.380 7.685
Mizcellaneous expenses 16,630 -
36,248 33,686

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD UsD

Fixed operating expenses 295976 163,519
Service expenses 7,849 8211
Miscellaneous expenses 25,256 10,841
63,081 182,571

One-Day Premium Fund
31 December 2024 31 December 2023

UsD UsDy

Legal expenses 122,340 9041
Registraiion expenses 22 80 6630
Overdrafl expenses 5485 -
Service expenses 3,532 1.503
Miscellaneous expenses 10,474 3631
166,632 20,805
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS

The sub-funds’ investment activities expose them to the various tyvpes of nisks which are associated
with the financial instruments and markets in which they invest. The Trust's nsk management policies
seek to mimimise the potential adverse effects of these nsks on each sub-fund financial performance in
order to satisiv the invesiment objectives of the sub-funds.

There is no guaraniee that in amy time period the sub-funds' invesiment objective will be successful.
Investors should be aware that the value of Units mav fall as well as rise. In particular, an investment
in the sub-funds 15 subject 1o investment risk, including the possible loss of the entire principal amount
that an investor may invest. The value of Units mav rise or fall, as the capital value of the securities in
which the sub-funds invests may Muctuate. The investment income of the sub-funds is based on the
income earmed on the securities it holds, less expenses incurred. Therefore, the sub-funds' investment
income may be expected to Muctuate in response 10 changes in such expenses or income

The main nsks ansing from the sub-funds’ financial instruments are market nsk Gneluding price nsk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate nsk), liquidity risk and credit risk.

(a) Markel Risk

Market nsk anses mainly from uncertainty aboul future prices of fnancial instruments held.
specifically from other price movements. It represents the potential loss the sub-funds may suffer
through holding markel positions in the face of adverse price movements.

The sub-Tunds are subjects to market price nsk. The value of the sub-funds’ investments will go up and
down as prices of the linancial instruments Nucluate,

The sub-funds’ financial instruments are susceptible 1o market price nisk from uncerainty about future
prices of financial instruments. All secunities in which the sub-funds invest present a nisk of loss of
capital. See Siatement of Invesimenis on pages 10 -12 for details of the sub-funds exposure to market
price risk. The sub-funds manage price risk by using various investment sirategies.

An increase of 1024 in fair value due to changes in valuation assumptions of financial assets as at the
reporting date would have increased the net assels attributable to the sub-fund and profit for the
financial vear by USD 7.331.39% (3] December 2023; USD 7.548,722) for DMS Target Matunity
Senting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) USD 7,453,711 (31 December
2023 USD 8.3%6,083) for DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) and USD 4,632,555 (3] December 2023: USD 3.963.633) for One-Day Premium
Fund. A decreaze of 10% would have had an equal and opposite impact.

(b} Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate nisk anses from the possibility of changes i interest rates. It will affect future cash flows
or the fair values of financial instruments. At the 31 December 2024 and at 31 December 2023, the
sub-funds do not have a matenal exposure 1o interest rate nsk.

(e} Ligquidity Risk
Ligquidity risk is defined as the risk that the sub-funds mav not be able 1o settle or meet its obligations
on [ime or al a reasonable price.
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS {Continued

() Liquidity Risk (Comtinued)

The AIFM maintains an adequate and documented liquidity management policy in accordance with
the requirements of Altemative Investment Fund Managers Directive (the "AIFMD”). The AIFM’s
liquidity management policy includes such procedures as are necessany 1o enable the ATFM 1o assess
and moniter the liquidity msk to which the sub-fumds and Trust are or may be exposed (including
conducting regular siress tesis under normal and exceptional liquidiiy conditions) and o ensure that
the liquidity profile of the invesiments of the sub-funds comply with the Trust"s underlving obligations,

The Trust’s policy 1o manage hquidity 15 10 have sulMicient liquidity in the sub-funds 10 meet s
lnabilities as and when they fall due, under both normal and stressed conditions without incurning undue
losses or risking damage.

The Trust assesses the liquidity profile of each sub-fund consistent with its underly ing obligations and
redemption policy during the lifecyvele of the sub-fund including at their launch. The Trust ensures that
liquadity thresholds which are proportionate 1o the redemption obligations and habihties of the sub-
fund are set.

A liguidity measurement methodology 15 in place 1o assess both the asset side and the hability side. On
the asset side, the methodology is based on a time-to-liquidate measure and a modelled market value
adjusiment, based on a series of quantiiative variables for difTerent assel classes. The model iakes into
aceount the expected redemption profile of the sub-lund and provides relevant estimates. Thus, the
methodology provides a clear rowe to portfolio managers on projected cash Mlows in the event of
porifolio (full or partial} liguidation,

The eredit terms Tor settlement of the liabilities of the sub-funds are generally within three months or
less,

{d) Credit Risk

Credit risk 15 the nsk that the counterparty to a finaneial instrument will ful 1o discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Trust. The Invesiment Manager assesses and measures
the risk of each investment on its menis and tailors s credit policy and monitonng accordingly on a
regular basis.

The maximiim exposure 1o credit risk is representad by the carrving amount of each lnancial asset at
the reporting date:

Brown Brothers Harnman Trustee Services (Ireland) Limited acts as Trustee and Depositary 1o the
Trust. Cazh held via accounts opened on the books of Brown Brodhers Harmman & Co. ("BBH™) are
obligations of BBH. Accordingly, while BBH s responsible for exercising reasonable care in the
administration of such agency cash accounts where il has appointed the agent {i.e. in the case of cash
correspondent banks and sub—custodians), it 15 nod liable for their repayvment in the event that the agent,
by reason of its bankruptey, msolvency or otherwise, fails o make repavment. Brown Brothers
Harriman & Co. has a long term credit rating of A+ (31 December 2023: A+ ) as issued by Fiich.

The inability {or perceived inabilitv) of issuers 1o make imelv pavments of interest and principal may
make the values of secuniies approximale only io the values placed on such securities. In the absence
of a liquid trading market for certain securities it may not be possible 1o establish the fair value of such
secuniies.
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS {Continued

(d) Cradit Risk (Continued)

The Notes Issuer is a special purpose company which does not have substantial assels of its own 1o
support 115 obligations under the MNotes, Amounts due to the sub-funds will only be paid with funds
paid 1o the Notes Issper under anv charged agreement(s) and anv charged assets. Therefore, the sub-
funds assume full credit nsk of the Motes Isswer, any counterparty and the obligons) of any charged
assels.

The Notes wall provide the sub-funds and each Unit Class with the exposure to a portfolio of fixed
income instruments (the “GS Bonds™) issued by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc (the “GS Bonds
Issuer”) with a long term credit rating of A (31 December 2023: A) as issued by Fiich

As at 31 December 2024, the issuer and counterparty for performance-linked notes held by the sub-
funds are Lumnms 11 Limted (“the Notes Issuer™).

While MaplesF5S Limited ("MFS5") is the registered owner of the Notes lssuer's ordinary shares, these
are held subject 1o a Declaration of Trust ("DOT"). Under the DOT, MFS holds the Notes Issuer’s
shares on trust for the benefit of a "Qualified Chanty” (as defined in the DOT) which is legally the
ultimate beneficial owner ("UBO") of the trust asseis which comprises solely the shares or the
economic value of the shares once the Motes [ssuer is formally liquidated, Tyvpically, the nominal value
of these trust assets would be less than USS 1,000, There are no bearer shares in the legal structure,

The sub-funds' cash 15 swept on a mightly basis to pre-approved lnancial institutions, As at 31
December 2024, the institutions where the sub-funds’ cash was held and their respective cradit ratimgs,
at that date, are listed below:

Institution Short Term Credit Indicator
ANZ. London High Grade

Sumitomo Mitsui Bank Corporation, Tokvo Upper Medium Grade
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, London Upper Medium Grade

{e) Counterparty Risk
Smlar to credii nsk, the sub-funds may be exposed to counterpariv nsk, or the nisk that an institution
or other entity with which the sub-funds has unsettled or open transactions will defaul.

As the One-Day Premium Fund is materially exposed 1o the Swap Counterparty, the sub-fund mav
sufTer significant losses in the event such as default or decline of management or financial situaton of
the Swap Counterparty.

The Manager may from time 1o ime, in its sole discretion, approve additional swap counterparties with
which the sub-fund may transact. Any such additional counterparties will be disclosed in the financial
statement of the sub-fund.

Goldman Sachs International Bank acts as the Swap Counterparty 1o the One-Day Premium Fund, The
Swap Counterpanty acts as a primany dealer for European government bonds and is involved in market
making mn European government bonds, lending and deposit taking activities, and secuniies lending,
In exceptional circumstances, the Swap Counterparty mav be unable 1o fulfil its obligations under the
Swap Agreement due to regulatory reasons, change in the tax or accounting laws relevant to the Swap
Counterparty, or otherwise. In such circumsiances, there i1s a nsk that the sub-fund’s invesiment
strategy could be imerrupted or terminated. In such circumstances, the investment objective and policy
of the sub-fund mayv not be achieved and the sub-fund may be unable to recover any losses incurred.
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS {Continued }

{e) Counterparty Risk (Continued)

The abilitv of the sub-fund 10 meet its obligations o Unitholders will depend on the receipt by it of
pavments owed (o the sub-fund by the Swap Counterparty under the Swap Agreement. As a result, the
sub-fumd will be exposed 10 the creditworthiness of the Swap Counterparty

Goldman Sachs International Bank may act as the Sirategy Calculaiion Ageni. The Toial Return Basket
Swap 1o be entered into by the sub-fund mav be highly specialised and there may be no counterparty
other than Goldman Sachs which provides such an OTC denvative instrument,

Goldman Sachs Intemational Bank has a long term credit rating of A+ (31 December 2023 A+)
as isswed by Fitch

(1 Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash lows of the sub-funds’ invesiments
will Muctuate as a result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, Certain of the sub-funds' assets,
liabilities, income and expenses are denominated in currencies other than its functional currency, As a
result, movement in exchange rates mav affect the value of those items. The Investment Manager
monitors this sk on an ongoing basis,

The tables below set out the carrving amount of financial instruments in each currency:

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
As at 31 December 2024

AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USD) (USD) (USD)
Financial Assets 1657072 63,759 400 73,416,571
Financial Liabilities - (231, 549) (2315405
THET T2 65,527,950 73,185,022

As at 31 December 2023
AUD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USD) (USD) (USD)
Financial Aszets 2485702 GT.07T8.211 75563913
Financial Liabilities - (122 180) (122,150}
8,485,702 6,956,031 T5441,733

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)
As at 31 December 2024

ALD Balances USD Balances Total Balances
(USD) (LSD) (USD)
Financial Assets 5,375,535 &0 276, 560 74,641,508
Financial Liabilities - (67,547 {56, %00)
5,375,535 68,300,013 73,684,548
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS {Continued }

(1 Foreign Currency Risk (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2023

AUD Balances USD Balances Taotal Balances
(USD) (USD) (USD)
Financial Assets 6, 102 801 TI823.741 $3.926.542
Financial Liabilities - (966, TT6) (i3, 7T6)
6,102,801 76,856,965 52,980,766
One-Day Premium Fund
As at 31 December 2024
JPY Balances USD Balances Total Balances
{USD) (USD) (USD)
Financial Assets B7.438 46,686,025 46,773 483
Financial Liabilities (630218) (458 468) {1088 686)
(542,760) 46,227,557 45,684,797
As at 31 December 2023
JPY Balances USDy Balances Total Balances
(LS (USD) (UsSD)
Financial Assels 1,298,734 6,131,969 a1 430,703
Financial Liabilities (1.231) [725.797) (727.028)
1,297,503 59,406,172 G0, 703,675

As at 31 December 2024, had the AUD strengthened or weakened by 5% against USD, with all other
variables held constant, this would have an approximate effect of USD 382,854 (31 December 2023
USD 424 285) for DMS Target Matunity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate
Bonds) and USD 268,777 (31 December 2023 USD 305, 140) for DMS Target Setting Fund 2103
(Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) on the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the sub-
fumd.

As ai 31 December 2024, had the IPY strengihened or weakened by 5% against USD, with all oiher
variables held constant, this would have an approximate effect of USD 27.13% (31 December 2023;
USD 64,875) for One-Day Premium Fund on the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the sub-Tund,

(g) Fair Value Estimation
The sub-fund has classified fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measuremeants.

FRS 102 Section 2A1 on “Far Value Disclosure” requires disclosure relating 1o the fair value
hierarchy in which Far value measurements are categonsed for assets and habilines, The disclosures
are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in valuation techniques to measure
fair value, In March 2016 amendments were made to paragraph 34.22 of this FRS, revising the
disclosure requirements for financial institutions to more closely align the disclosure requirements with
those in IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and histonical practice with those in Insh GAAP.
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Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS {Continued }

(g) Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

Fimancial assets and liabilities are measured in the Statement of Financial Position at far value. The
fair value meagsurements are categonsed within a three-level hierarchy. The valuanion hierarchy 1s
based upon the relative observability and reliability of inputs to the valuation of each of the sub-funds’
investments, The inputs or methodology wsed for valuing securities are not necessanly an indication
of the risk associated with investing in those secuniies. The three levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 - The unadjusted quoted price in an active market for identical assets or habilities that the sub-
fund can access at the measurement date,

The tvpes of assets and liabilities categorised in Level 1 generally include actively traded domestic and
certain foreign equity secunties, certain LS. government obligations, derivatives actively traded on a
national securities exchange (such as some Mutures and options), shares of exchange traded funds (even
il their investmenis are valued using Level 2 or Level 3 inpuis).

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable (i.e. developed
wsing market data) for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly,

These incluede investment-grade corporate bonds and certain non-U.S. sovereign obligations, listed
equities, mutual funds, equitv-linked notes and over the counter denvatives. As level 2 investments
include positions that are not traded in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions,
valuations may be adjusted 1o reflect illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based
on available market information,

Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable (i.e. for which market data is unavailable) for the asset or liability.

The types of assets and liabilities categonised in Level 3 generally include, but are not limited 10, certain
debit securities (such as asset-backed, mongage-backed, loans and soverzign debt) and denvatives even
though they are valued using broker quotes; certain debt securities and dervatives adjusted by a
specified discount for liquidity or other considerations: certain sovereign debt secunties valued using
comparable securities issued by the sovereign adjusted by a specified spread; securities whose trading
has been suspended or that have been de-listed from their current primary trading exchange valued
the most recent avalable market or quoted price; secunties in default or bankroptey proceedings for
which there is no current market quotation valued at the most recent available market or quoted price;
potential litigation recovenes and interests related 10 bankrupiey proceedings; third-party investment
funds where valuations are provided by fund sponsors and which are adjusted for liguidiey
considerations as well as the timing of the receipt of information and cenain securities that are valued
wsing a price from a comparable secunity related to the same issuer.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized is
determined on the basiz of the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement in s
entirety. The significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.

If a fair value measurement uses observable inpuis thai require significani adjusimeni based on
unobservable inputs, this may be deemed to fall within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Assessing
the significance of a particular input 1o the fair value measurement in its entirely requires judgement,
considering factors specific to the asset or liability.
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS {Continued }

(g) Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

The determination of what constitutes “observable™ requires significant judgement by the Investment
Manager, The Invesiment Manager considers observable data to be that market data that 15 readily
avalable, regularly distnibuted or updated, reliable and venfiable, not proprietary. and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved i the relevant market,

The following tables provide an analvsis of the fair value hierarchy of the sub-funds’ financial assets,
megsured at fair value at 31 December 2024 and 2023,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds)

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels USD Usn UsD UsD
Performance-linked notes - - 73,313,987 73,313 987
Tatal - - 73,313,987 73313987
3 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsSD Uso UsSD LS
Performance-linked notes - - 75,487,222 75,487,222
Total - - T5487212 75487222

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels LsD Usn LsD LsD
Performance-linked notes - - 74,537,110 74,537,110
Total - - 74,537,110 74,537,110
31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD UsD UsD LS
Performance-linked notes - - £3.800,833 £3.800,833
Total - - 83,800,833 53,800,853
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12, FINANCIAL RISKS (Continued)
(g) Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

One-Day Premium Fund

31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels LUsD Usp UsD LS
Total Rewum Basket Swaps - 46,294,082 - 4, 25,082
Forward Foreign Currency Contracls - #7.351 - 87.351
Total - 46381433 - 46381433
Liabilities

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts - 630218 - 630,218
Total . 630,218 . 630,218
31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels LsD Usp LUsD UsD
Total Return Basket Swaps - 59,636,333 - 4,630,333
Forward Foreien Currency Contracts - G443 860 - G943 80640
Total - 60,580,193 - 60,580,193
Liabilities

Forward Foreipn Currency Conlracts - 1.231 - 1.231
Total i 1.231 - 1,251

The sub-fund s assets and liabilities not measured al fair value include cash, shorl-tenm receivables and
pavables. The respective balances are carried al values that reflect a reasonable approximation of their
fair value In accordance with the requiremenis of FRS 102, cash balances are classilied as Level | and
all other aszets and liabilities are ¢lassified as Level 2.

Teanslers into and out of levels are recognizsed at the end of the reporting vear. There were no ransfers
into or out of Level 3 during the financial vear ended 31 December 2024 or 31 December 2023

A0
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS {Continued )
(g) Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

The tables below show a reconciliation from the beginming balances (o the ending balances for fur
value measurements of level 3 financial assets of the fair value hierarchy,

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bomds)

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Usp UsSD

Opening balance T5487 222 78,322 261

Sales during the financial vear (5,185.719) (6,204, 5649)

Realised (losses) on investments (255.338) (66, 433)
Met change in unrealised appreciation on

investmenis al fair value through profit or loss 3,270,822 3,975 963

Closing balance 73,513,987 75,487,222

As at 31 December 2024, an increase or decrease of 5% in fair value due 1o changes in valuation
assumplions would have an approximate effect of USD 3,665 609 (3] December 2023: 3774361 ) on
the net assets annbutable o the sub-fund.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Opening balance
Sales during the linancial vear
Realised (losses) on invesimenis

Met change in unrealised appreciation on
investments al Gur value through prodit or loss

Closing balance

Level 3 Level 3

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
UsD USD

53860833 B4 K42 GER
(10684, 130) (3.490,121)
(3,270,710} (1,3458,042)
4.631.117 3850308
74.537.110 83,860,833

As al 31 December 2024, an increase or decrease of 5% in far value due o changes in valuation
assumptions would have an approximate effect of USD 3,726,850 (31 December 2023; 4,193,042y on
the net assets atinbutable to the sub-fund,

Valuation methodology

Two of the sub-funds invest into performance-linked Notes, the fair value of which is determined by
Goldman Sachs, using a valuation model. The kev observable inputs and uncbservable inputs 1o this
valuation model are as follows:
*  Kev observable inputs
o Inferest rates
oGS credit spread
o Level of the strategy as well as its components
*  Kev unohservable input
o Implied volanlity
o Discount rates and vields
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

12. FINANCIAL RISKS {Continued }
(g) Fair Value Estimation (Continued)

Valuation methodelogy (Continued)

Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The
valuation method bemng used for Anancial assets held by the sub-Tunds that are classified as Level 3
the fair value hierarchy 15 the wse of proxy pricing technigues by Goldman Sachs, The vield being wsed
in the proxy prcing 15 considered the most significant unobservable input used which impacts the price
and related [air value of (he performance linked notes,

13. EXCHANGE RATES

The following exchange rates have been used 10 translate assets and liabilities in currencies other than
USD at financial vear end:

As at As at

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
ALD [EET 14655
EUR 10394 11039
JPY 157, 200K BRI

i4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Directors of the Manager are not aware of anv transactions with related persons during the financial
vear ended 31 December 2024 and for the financial vear ended 31 December 2023, other than those
disclosed in these financial statements, The AIFM, Waystone Management Company (1E) Limited, the
Investment Manager, Waystone Investment Management (1E) Limited, the Agent Securities Company
in Goldman Sachs Japan Co., Lid are regarded as related parties of the sub-funds under FRS 102
“Related Party Disclosures™

Mr, Keith Hazlev, Mr, James Allis and Mr, Andrew Kehoe are Directors of the Manager and also
emplovees of Waystene Management Company (IE) Limited.

Ms. Sarah Wallace and Ms. Andrea Oman are Directors of the Manager and also emplovees of
Waystone Management Company (1E) Limited. Ms. Sarah Wallace was appointed to the Board of
Directors of the Manager on 11 Julv 2024 and Ms. Andrea Oman was appointed to the Board of
Directors of the Manager on 31 March 2025

Ms. Samantha Mevlit and Ms, Rachel Wheeler were Directors of the Manager and also emplovees of
Waystone Management Company (IE) Limited and Wavstone Governance (LK) Linuted, respectively,
Ms. Samantha Mevlit resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 29 February 2024 and
Ms. Rachel Wheeler resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 31 March 2025,

All related parties are transacted at arm’s length,
Fees incurred with related parties during the fnancial vear are disclosed in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income. Amounts payable to related parties at the financial vear are disclosed in
Mote 5.
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

15. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PORTFOLIO POSITIONS

The statement of changes in portfolio positions for the financial vear has not been presented though
the details may be obtained free of charge from Wavsione Management Company (1E) Limited

16, NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

The MNet Asset Value per redeemable participating unit is caleulated by dividing the total net assets (as
calculated For pricing purposes) of the sub-Tunds by the number of redeemable participating Units in
isgue. The Met Asset Value per redeemable participating unit reported in the Statement of Financial
Position 15 that used [or lnancial stalement purposes,

For the purposes of the lnancial statements, all orgamsational expenses, including fees paid o the
professional advisors of the sub-funds, are expensed in the fnancial vear they are incurred in
accordance with FRS 102, Organisational expenses were charzed to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

DMS Target Matunty Seting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) will be
put o Liquidation aler the 23 July 2025, Liquidation cost expenses expected (o be incurred upon
closure of the sub-fund are expected 1o amount 1o USD 30000 and have been acerued for in these
financial statemenis.

The tables below illusirate the reconciliation between the MNet Assel Value for hnancial statement
purposes and the Met Asset Value per Unit for Unitholder dealing purposes.

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

As at As at
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
UsD UsD
Met Asset Value for financial
statement purposes T3, 185,022 75,441,733
Add: Cumulative additional
organisabional expenses writien off - -
Add: Acecrved liquidation costs RAELIL ] -
Met Assel Value for Unitholder
dealing purposes 73,235,022 75,441,733
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Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)

For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

16. NET ASSET VALUE AND NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2103 (Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds)

Met Aszel Value for financial
slalement purposes

Add: Cumulative additional
organisational expenses writlen off
Met Assel Value for Unitholder
dealing purposes

One-Day Premium Fund

MNet Asgel Value for financial
slalement purposes

Add: Comulative additional
organisational expenses written ofl

MNet Asset Value for Unitholder
dealing purposes

As al As at
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
Usp UsD
73,0684 548 #2959 Ton
- 57,231
73,684,548 H3.016,997
As al As al
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
UsD UsD
45,684,797 G0, 703 675
UR 413 130,447
45,783,210 oA, 834,122

17. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Ms. Samantha Mevlit resigned (rom the Board of Directors of the Manager on 29 February 2024,

Ms. Sarah Wallace was appointed as Non-Executive Director 1o the Board of Directors of the Manager

on 11 July 2024.

There were no other significant events eccurring during the financial vear ended 31 December 2024,

15, SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END

Ms. Rachel Wheeler resigned from the Board of Directors of the Manager on 31 March 2025,

Ms. Andrea Oman was appointed as Non-Executive Director 10 the Board of Directors of the Manager

on 31 March 2025,
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Briongloid Bridze Unit Trust
Motes to the Audited Financial Statements (Continued)
For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

18. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS SINCE THE FINANCIAL YEAR END (Continued)

DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 {Investing in Goldman Sachs Corporate Bonds) will be
put into liquidation after the 23 July 2025, Liquidation cost expenses expected 1o be incurred upon
closure of the sub-fund are expected to amount 1o USD 50,000 and have been accrued for in these
financial statements,

There were no other significant evenis occurring after 31 December 2024 requiring financial sialement
disclosure.

19. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Directors of the Manager on 11 June 2025
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Briongloid Bridee Unit Trust
Statement of Investments (Continued )
As at 31 December 2024

One-Day Premium Fund

Number of Fuir Value %6 of Net
Shares Security Desoripdion USD  Asscis
‘Total Return Basket Swaps (31 December 2023: 98, 24%)
412,787 Ciohdman Sechs Baskel Serves 307 Toll Relum Strategy di 204 (1H2 101,33
“Tutal 46,294,062 101,33

Forward Foreign Currency Contracts (31 December 2023 1.56%)
Amaunt Amaunt Mlmturity Unrealised %% ol Net
rodeiva ble pravalile itz Counlerpurty Conlracls  gain USD Assils
LIS 1,504,537 JPY 2R 989207 10A012025 Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. 7 23,500 [N E]
JPY 2047072580 USD 1 30TR0TT 10022025 Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co, F 3RIF (UL
JPY 4,448,922 IS0 28,638 10M142025 Brown Brothers Hamman & Co, | ] (LI
Total unrealised gain on Forward Foreign Carrency Contracts HT,551 0,19
Total Anancial asseds al fir value through profit or loss 4, 341,433 1]
Financial Habilithes at fair valae through profit or boss (31 December 200232 0,00)%)
Forward Foreign Currency Contracts
Amaunt Amaount Mlmturity Unrenlised %% of Net
rodeiva ble prayalle alaie Counlerparty Contracis  boss USLY Asscls
JPY 2340, TT LGRS USD 1 5331,065 10012025 Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co H (G26.464) (L3}
LISDY 13,079,938 JPY 2,054,782, 398 10/001/2025 Brown Brothers Harmmion & Co, F3 (3,746) Ay
LISID 28,744 JPY 4,498 922 10M02/2025 Brown Brothers Harmman & Co. | LE:1] (LK}
Tuotul unrealiscd loss on Formand Forcign Currency Contructs (3,218 {1.38)

Tutal financial Habilitics at fair value through profit or loss

Oiher assets and liabilitics

(63, 218) (1.35)

Falr Value % of Net

Met Assets attributable to Unithalders

USDr  Asseis
(54181 el 143
45,684,797 1ML (o)
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2025
( )
43,752,918 6,541,936
715,966 107,051
43,036,952 6,434,885
2,555,741
350,832
1,536,968
228,773
10.86 1,624
10.11 1,512
1,001
946
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2025
4,490,006 2,774
4,490,006

2020 31 2025 31

2022 10 22

2023 12 31 4
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- AIFM UCITS
ACD
AEOI ANL
SPV
- 100
ETF - ETF
2025
EU 190,082,162,506
EU 7,028,783,687
AIF 503
ucITS 326
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328

2025 31
162.08

2024 12 31
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IE
2024 12 31
2024 2023
33,283,581 5,394,603 44,086,186 7,145,489
29,729,991 4,818,637 22,026,305 3,570,024
10 9,000,000 1,458,720 - -
72,013,572 11,671,960 66,112,491 10,715,513
11 52,164 8,455 76,181 12,347
12 525,272 85,136 870,742 141,130
13 2,825,153 457,901 2,825,153 457,901
3,402,589 551,492 3,772,076 611,378
75,416,161 12,223,451 69,884,567 11,326,891
14 4,490,006 727,740 4,490,006 727,740
14.1 17,918,369 2,904,209 17,918,369 2,904,209
14.2 3,600,000 583,488 3,600,000 583,488
15 31,816,968 5,156,894 23,528,080 3,813,431
15 - - 186,650 30,252
57,825,343 9,372,332 49,723,105 8,059,121
16 17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
17,590,818 2,851,120 20,161,462 3,267,770
75,416,161 12,223,451 69,884,567 11,326,891
2025 29 2025 29
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IE
2024 2023

88,636,558 14,366,213 70,149,292 11,369,797
(26,514,745) (4,297,510) (29,354,208)  (4,757,730)
62,121,813 10,068,703 40,795,084 6,612,067
(39,300, 699) (6,369, 857) (32,819,769)  (5,319,428)
22,821,114 3,698,846 7,975,315 1,292,639

664,135 107,643 8,578 1,390

977,329 158,405 - -
24,462,578 3,964,895 7,983,893 1,294,029
(1,173,690) (190, 232) (690,751) (111,957)
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072
23,288,888 3,774,663 7,293,142 1,182,072
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IE

2024 12 31

2023 4,490,002 727,740 - - 3,600,000 583,488 16,234,938 2,631,359 - - 24,324,940 3,942,586
- - - - - - 7,293,142 1,182,072 - - 7,293,142 1,182,072
4 1 17,918,369 2,904,209 - - - - - - 17,918,373 2,904,210
- - - - - - - - 186,650 30,252 186,650 30,252

2023 12 31 4,490,006 727,740 17,918,369 2,904,209 3,600,000 583,488 23,528,080 3,813,431 186,650 30,252 49,723,105 8,059,121
- - - - - - 23,288,888 3,774,663 - - 23,288,888 3,774,663
- - - - - - (15,000,000) (2,431,200) - - (15,000,000) (2,431,200)
- - - - - - - - (186,650)  (30,252) (186,650) (30,252)

2024 12 31 4,490,006 727,740 17,918,369 2,904,209 3,600,000 583,488 31,816,968 5,156,894 - - 57,825,343 9,372,332
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IE
2024 12 31
2024 2023
24,462,578 3,964,895 7,983,893 1,294,029
90,912 14,735 273,719 44,364
245,988 39,870 7,811 1,266
(664,135) (107,643) (8.578) (1,390)
(186,650) (30,252) 186,650 30,252
23,948,693 3,881,604 8,443,495 1,368,522
(7.368,038)  (1,194,212)  (1,194,482) (193,602)
(2,570,645) (416,650) 7,028,370 1,139,158
14,010,010 2,270,742 14,277,383 2,314,078
(1,514,001) (245,389)  (2,195,115) (355,784)
12,496,009 2,025,353 12,082,268 1,958,294
49,848 8,079 (282,805) (45,837)
664,135 107,643 8,578 1,390
(12,597) (2,042) (83,390) (13,516)
- - (2,825,153) (457,901)
- - (89,780) (14,552)
(9,000,000)  (1,458,720) - -
(8,298,614)  (1,345,039)  (3,272,550) (530,415)
- - 17,918,369 2,904,209
(15,000,000)  (2,431,200) - -
_ . 4 1
(15,000,000)  (2,431,200) 17,918,373 2,904,210
(10,802,605)  (1,750,886) 26,728,091 4,332,089
44,086,186 7,145,489 17,358,095 2,813,400
33,283,581 5,394,603 44,086,186 7,145,489
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IAS 21 2025
IFRS IFRS 2026
IFRS 18 2027
2.4
2.5
2.6
AIFM UCITS
NAV
EMIR FATCA MLRO
IFRS 15
¢!
(¢
G
4

G
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2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10
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2.11

RSU ESPP

2.12
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2.17
2.18
3.
3.1
2024 2023
88,636,558 70,149,292
AIFM UCITS
NAV
2024 2023
1,817,362 1,414,589
1,353,311 824,157
5,847,727 4,871,299
79,044,081 62,773,445
406,645 265,802
207 -
167,225 -
88,636,558 70,149,292
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4.
4.1
2024 2023
13,531,552 8,589,995
1,519,990 927,918
1,015,322 648,979
326,576 196,013
16,393,440 10,362,905
4.2
2024 2023
886,624 536,875
45,437 25,750
8,760 4,114
63,947 28,907
1,004,768 595,646
2024 12 31 37,500
2023 91,875
4.3
2024 2023
147 96
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20

4.1

4.2
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2024 2023
40,000 53,187
- 9,847
90,912 273,719
275,726 59,507
245,988 7,811
(303,176) 394,741
1,629,300 536,893
16,784,165 17,271,434
16,393,440 10,362,905
1,004,768 595,646
3,139,576 3,254,080
39,300,699 32,819,770
742,847 560,848
2,048,618 1,850,996
23,723,280 26,942,363
26,514,745 29,354,207

977,329 2023
2024 2023

18,842 8,578

638,964 -

6,329 -

664,135 8,578
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7.
7.1
2024 2023
1,173,690 690,751
1,173,690 690,751
7.2
2024 2023
12.5 2023 12.5 22,821,114 7,975,315
25% 2023 25 664,135 8,578
23,485,249 7,983,893
12.5 2023 :12.5 2,852,639 996,914
25 2023 25 166,034 2,145
3,018,673 999,059
(1,155,673) -
(689,310) (308, 308)
1,173,690 690,751
8.
2024 2023
20,309,071 31,568,439
12,974,510 12,517,747
33,283,581 44,086,186
CBI 18
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 2023
A2 AL
A3 AL
HSBC pa3 Aa3
9.
2024 2023
* 6,901,407 6,935,025
3,868,081 1,548,537
1,972,314 386,959
511,742 171,431
1,026,312 160,970
15,025,089 12,137,930
425,046 685,453
29,729,991 22,026,305
* 329,650 2023 59,507
10.
2024 2023
* 9,000,000 -
9,000,000 -
3.5
11.
2024 95,863 95,863
12,597 12,597
2024 12 31 108,460 108,460
2024 19,682 19,682
36,614 36,614
2024 12 31 56,296 56,296
2024 12 31 52,164 52,164
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2023 12,472 12,472
83,391 83,391
2023 12 31 95,863 95,863
2023 11,871 11,871
7,811 7,811
2023 12 31 19,682 19,682
2023 12 31 76,181 76,181
12.
2024 89,780 1,368,293 1,458,073
- (49,848) (49,848)
2024 12 31 89,780 1,318,445 1,408,225
2024 9,015 578,316 587,331
47,084 248,538 295,622
2024 12 31 56,099 826,854 882,953
2024 12 31 33,681 491,591 525,272
2023 89,780 1,085,488 1,175,268
- 282,805 282,805
2023 12 31 89,780 1,368,293 1,458,073
2023 - 313,611 313,611
9,015 264,705 273,720
2023 12 31 9,015 578,316 587,331
2023 12 31 80,765 789,977 870,742
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13.
2023 19 BTA
IE LFMSIL 2023 10 BTA
CBI
LFMSIL 2024 12 31 2,825,153
2023 2,825,153
14.
2024 2023
100,000,000 4,490,006 4,490,006 1 4,490,006 4,490,006
14.1
2024 12 31 17,918,369
2023 17,918,369
14.2
15.
2024 23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
- (186,650) (186, 650)
23,288,888 - 23,288,888
(15,000,000) - (15,000,000)
2024 12 31 31,816,968 - 31,816,968
2023 16,234,938 - 16,234,938
- 186,650 186,650
7,293,142 - 7,293,142

2023 12 31 23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
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16.
2024 2023
2,095,493 800,539
4,689,928 5,043,387
1,737,517 -
434,036 492,327
8,633,844 13,825,209
17,590,818 20,161,462
17.
2024 2024 2024
_ (8,054) 18,868
168,729 - 168,729
UK - (1,978,187) (137,473)
IE - (5,278,287) 1,273,576
IE 512 (56,580) (56,068)
UK 653 (7,759) (14,077)
_ - 23,804
Us ( )
- (12,289) (29,540)
IE - (121,745) (143,729)
Lux
93 - 93
208 (642,996) 142
IE - (108,563) (624,897)
UK 96 (1,046,882) 1,230,113
USA - (26,075) -
IE 17,871 (1,138,150) (1,206,219)
UK 105,980 (131,202) (112,179)
Lux 103,730 (1,444,959) (783,890)
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39,858 - 39,858
- - (190, 869)
- (4,780,799) (1,171,272)
- - 9,000,000
- - 79,559
- (1,639) (1,434)
- - 881,593
- - 10,452
- - 5,098
- - (14,479)
- - (20,000)

2023 2023 2023
- (723,862) 28,755
- (2,360,500) (182,756)
- (6,645,508) (2,750,726)
- (8,422) (8,422)
- (1,623) (2,065)
- - (18,037)
- (42,961) 233
- (1,192) 10,266
- (383,030) -
- (5,073) 341,866

163,837 (1,338,856) -
- (727,502) (459,989)
- (105,108) -
- - (210,981)
- - (210,576)
- (3,594,896) -
- - 332,028
- - 10,452
- - 2,023
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- - (11,403)
KB
- - (920,288)
L
w - (571,319) -
16 2024 12 31
18.
18.1
18.1.1
2024 2023
33,283,581 44,086,186
6,901,407 6,935,025
3,868,081 1,548,537
3,510,368 719,360
15,025,089 12,137,930
9,000,000 -
71,588,526 65,427,038
2024 2023
7,231,057 6,994,532
(329,650) (59,507)
6,901,407 6,935,025
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18.1.2

2024 12 31 17,590,817
2023 20,161,462

18.1.3

18.1.4

18.1.5

18.1.6
CBI

CBI EU 2013/36/EU
EU NO 575/2013

17,087,153 2023
16,399,659

19.

2024

2024 12 31

20.
2024 12 31 2023
21.
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDAT CAT

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2024

2024 2023

Maotes £ €
Assels
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents B 33,283,581 44,086, 186
Trade and other receivables 9 20,720,991 22,026,305
Loans and borrowings 10 Q000,000 -
Total current assets 72,013,572 665,112,491
Mon-current assets
Tangible fixed assets 11 52,164 76,181
Intangible assels 12 525,272 B70,742
Ceoodwill 13 2,825,153 2825153
Total non-current assets 3A02,589 3772076
Tokal assets 75,416,161 69,854,567
Equity and hiabilities
Equity
Share capital 14 4.490,006 4. 490,006
Share premium 14.1 17,918,365 17,918, 365
Capital contribution 14.2 3,600,000 3,601,000
Retained carnings 15 31,816,065 23,528,080
Mher reserves 15 - 186,650
Total equity 57,825,343 49,723,105
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 17,500 815 200,161,462
Total current liabilities 17,590,818 20,161,462
Total liabilities 17,590,815 20,161,462
Total equity and liabilities 75,416,161 69,884,567

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Rigad bry: S
rﬁ S Jawes Al
Director Director
Date: 29 Apnil 2025 Date: 29 April 2025

The accompenying moles are an integral part of Hrese finamcial statements.
12
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
MNotes £ €
Continuing operations:
Revenue 3 85,636,558 70,149,292
Cost of sales 5 (26,514,745)  (29,354,208)
Gross profit 62,121,813 40,795,084
Administrative expenses 5 (39,300,609)  {32,819,769)
Operating profit 22821114 7975315
Finance income & 6hd, 135 B578
Other income 5 977,329 -
Profit before income tax 24,462,578 7,983,893
Income tax 7 (1,173,.650) (69),751)
Profit for the financial year 23,288,585 7,293,142
Total comprehensive income for the financial year 23,258,885 7,293,142
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent 23,283,858 7,293,142

Al results have boen generated by continuing operations.

The accompanying moles are an fntegral part of these finamrcial statements.

11
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Diocusign Ervaiops ID; 406ETBAS-E2I0-4345-BR0F CAF EASDAIOST

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Share Share Capital Retained Other
capital premium  contributions carmings TESETVES Total
£ £ € 3 € €
As at 1 January 2023 4,490,002 - 3,600,000 16,234,938 - 24,324,940
Profit for the financial year - - - T.H3,142 - T.H3,142
lssue of share capital 4 17,918,364 . = . 17,918,373
- - - 186,650 186,650

Unrealised currency gain

4,450,006 17,518 3659 3,600,000 23,528,080 186,650 48,723,105

As at 31 December 2023

- . 2328888 . 23288888
- < (15,000,000} < (15,000,000}
. . - {1B6,65(1) {186,65(0)

Prodit for Hhe financial year
tayment of dividends
Unrealised currency gainloss

As at 31 December 2024 4,490,006 17,918,369 3,600,000 31,616,968 - 57,825,343

The weconpunrying notes are an integr park of these fmancin! stitements
13
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Amortisation

Depreciation - owned assets

Finance income

Unrealised currency (loss)/gain

Met cash flows generated by operating activities
Change in operating assets and liabilitics:
Movement in frade and other receivables
Mowement in trade and other payables

Met cash generated by in operations
Income bax paid

Met cash generated by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Mowvement in incremental costs o new contracts
Interest received

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Purchase of Goodwill

Purchase of intangible assets

Movement in Loans and Bomrowings

Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of share premium

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issue of share capital

Met cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the financial year

2024 2023
Motes [3 3
24,462,578 7083803
0,972 273719
245,988 7811
(664,135) (8,578)
(186,650) 186,650
23,948,643 8,443,495
(7.368038)  (1,194,452)
(2,570,645) 70028, 370
14,010,000 14,277,383
(L514.001)  (2.195.115)
12,496,009 12,082,268
45.R48 {282,805)
i, 135 £,578
{12,597} (83,390
- (2,825,153)
- (9, 750)
(9, M0, 006N -
18,298,614) 13,272,5500
= 17,918,368
(15,000,000} -
- 4
{15,000,0000 17,918,373
(10,802,605) 26,728,091
44,0186, 156 17,358,005
8 33,283,581 44,066,186

The accompenying moles are an integral part of Hrese finamcial statements.

14
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDATCET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

1. STATUTORY INFORMATION

Wavstone Management Company (IE) Limited (the "Company™) is a company limited by shares
incorporated and domiciled in Ireland. The Company is tax resident in Ireland and the registered numbser
and registered address can be found on the Company Information page.

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards
{or TTFRS™).

22 Basis of preparation

The princpal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
The policies have been consistently applied to the financial year presented and the prior financial year,
unless otherwise stated.

These finandal statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finandal Reporting
Standards, International Acoounting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(LASH) as adopled by the European Union {("IFRSs7) and with those parts of the Companies Act 2004
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The finandial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for certain fimandial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts
of fair values at the end of cach reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below,

The financial statements are presented in Euro (€) . which is the Company’s functional currency and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Amsunts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest Euro (€).
23 Changes in accounting policies
a MNew standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2024

In the current fimandal year, the Company has applied the below amendments o IFRS Standards and
Interpretations that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1 January 2024, Their
adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these
financial statements.

The following amendments had no material impact on the Company's financial stafements.

+ 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current and Mon-Current Liabilities with Covenants (effective for annual  peniods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024).

198/268



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDAT CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUETD)
13 Changes in accounting policies (continued)
a Mew standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2024 (continued)

+ IFRS 7 Finandal Instruments: Disclosures - Supplier Finance Arramgements (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024).

by Mew standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective

At the dabe of approval of these fimandal statements, several new, but not vet effective, standards and
amendments o existing standards, and  Interpretations have been published by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASE™). Mone of these standards or amendments to existing standards
hawe been adopted early by the Company.

The Directors anticipate that all relevant pronouncements will be adopted for the first period beginning
on or after the effective date of the pronounoement.

Standard Title of Standard or Interpretation Effective date

Amendments o [AS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025

Amendments:  IFRS 9 and | Classification and  Measurement of | 1 January 2026

IFRS 7 Finanaal Instruments

Mew Standard: IFRS 18 Presentation  and  Disclosure  in| 1 January 2027
Fimangial Statements

For all the stanclards and amendments listed above, the Directors do not expect any material impact.
24 Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management b0 make udgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and
assumplions.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including reasomable expectation of current period’s estimates. This note provides a summarny of
the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity. Detailed information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in other notes,

The Directors have considered where significant judgement and key estimates are included in the
financial statements and these include the following:
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 Significant judgements and estimates (continued)

*  Incremental cost to new contracts - The deferred contract costs relate to capitalised
commissions paid to staff, which the Company expects to recover over the life of the asset.
Dhirectors have estimated that 5 vears is an appropriate period of amortisation. Where cortain
contracts have a definite useful life, the incremental oosts have been amortised over the
appropriate life of the contract.

25 Goodwill

Coodwill represents the excess of consideration paid over the fair value of net tangible and intangible
assets acquired in business acquisitions and related costs of acquisition. Goodwill s subject to annual
impairment tests,

Coodwill is measured as the estimated future economic benefits which will be generated byv an
acquisition in the future, Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in drcumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carryving
armount of goodwill relating to the entity sold,

26 Revenue recognition

Revenue consists of management fees and set-up fees carned in respect of the Company acting as an
ATFM and UCITS Management Cnmrmn:,.l to imvestment funds, bank interest and certain sundr:y income,
which is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the financial
vear when it is carned, Bevenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Company, and the amount of the revenue can be reliably measured.

Management fees are calculated based on a percentage of a fund’s Net Asset Value (or "NAVT), subject to
a i agreed fee,

Professional service foes
Professional services fees, such as EMIR, FATCA, Payroll, VAT, Company Secretarial and MLEO
support, are recorded by reference o the period of the service, Amounts camed but not yet billed are
recorded as acorued income, The Company primarily earns fixed annual fees or fised rate fees relating to
professional services.

The Company accounts for contracts with customers that fall within the scope of IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers only, when all of the following crteria are mek:

(1) Identifyving the contract with a customer.
(2) ldentifving the performance obligations,
(3) Determining the transaction price,
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
26 Revenue recognition (continued)
(4)  Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations.
(5) Becognising revenue whenfas performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

The amount of revenue that the Company recognises is measured based on the consideration specified in
contracts with customers. These contracts involve a series of services that are substantially the same and
the benefit of each service is received and consumed immediately. These contracts therefore consist of a
single performance obligation for which control is transferred over fime and revenue is reoognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of cach contract, This method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer
of goods or services becawse the work required does not vary significantly from month-to-month.

FPerformance obligations aend revertie Fecogrrition palicies
These services are recognised over the period for which they are provided. The revenue is accrued until
client invodces are issued. Bevenue billed but not vet considered carned is recorded as deferred revenue.

27  Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Expenditure incurred in the provision of services to
other group companies is recorded on a gross basis in accordance with the contractual arrangements in
place.

Included in cost of sales are costs paid by the Company in respect of platform costs paid in respect of
client funds. These costs of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per revenue in Mole 3.

8 Employee benefit costs

The Cmupan}-' operates a defined contribution pension scheme. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Company pays fised conbribubions into a separate enbity and does not have any
legal or constructive obligations if the pension plan does not hold sufficient assets o pay all employees
the benefits relating fo employee service in the current and prior financial years. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Company. Contributions payable to the Company's pension schemse
are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period which they
relabe to.

Other long-term employee benefits pertain to equity held.
29 Taxation

Current taxes are based on the results shown in the financial statements and are calculated acoording to
local tax rules, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of Financial Position
date,
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
29 Taxation (continued)

Deterred tax is provided on timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the Statement of
Financial Positon date where transachions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the
furbure or a right to pay less tax in the future have ocourred at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Dreferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the years in
which the iming differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date. The Company has not adopted a
policy of discounting deferred tax assel and liabilities.

A deferred tax asset 15 regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all
available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits
from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted.

210 Foreign currencies

Assets ang liabilities in foreign currencies are ranslated into Euro at the rates of exchange ruling at the
Statement of Finandal Position date, Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Euro with an
appropriate rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are franslated at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of
the transaction. Mon-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are franslated
using the exchange rates al the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are faken
into account in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.,

211 Share based payments

Long=termy employee benefits pertaining to equity held typically refer o compensation or rewards
granted o employees in the form of equity-based instruments that vest over an extended period. These
benefits are designed fo incentivise and retain emplovees for the long term, aligning, their interests with
the Company’s sucoess. Equily-based compensation can come in various forms, such as stock oplions,
restricted stock units (RSUs), or emploves stock purchase plans (ESPPs).

The fair value of equity-based instruments is recognised as an employee benefils expense, with a
corresponding, increase in equity. The total expense is recognised over the vesting, period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting, conditions are 1o be satisfied. Ar the end of each period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected o vest based on the non-market
vesting and service conditions, b recgonises the impact of the revision o orginal cstimates, if any, in
profit or loss, with a comesponding adjustment o equity.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments

Recognition
Financial assets and financial habalities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual prowisions of the financial instrument.

Purchases or sales of finandal assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recogniced on the trade date, e,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Iritial measureiment

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assefs and finandial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deduded from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or finandal liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recogniscd immediately in the profit or boss,

Fimancial pssets - amortised cost
The Company's finandal assets met the following conditions and are classified into the amortised oost
category if:
*  They are held within a business madel whose objective is to hold the finangial assets and
collect its contractual cash flows.

*  The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the princ pal amount outstanding,

The financial assets held by the Company recognised at amorbised cost consist of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, ofher receivables, accrued income, amounts owed by group undertakings
and loans and borrowings. All financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction
cosls,

Cash represents cash at bank and deposits held on demand with financial institutions. Cash equivalents
represent short-term, highly-liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

In the presentation of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash also includes bank overdrafts. Any such
overdrafts are shown within borrowings under ‘current liabilities’ on the Statement of Finandal Position.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets - amortised cost (contintied)

After initial recognition, these are measured at amorbised cost using the effective inferest method.
Discounting, is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. All revenue and expenses relating to
financial assets are recognised in profit or loss in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are not redassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting, period following the change in the business model.

Financial assets are measwred af fair valne trongh obher comprelensive incone if the belon condition s mef:
= The finandal asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
eollecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assels.

*  The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on spedfied dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

The Company does not currently hold any assets at fair value through other comprehensive inoomie.

Financial assels - business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the obpective of the business model inowhich a financial asset 15
held because this best reflects the way the business 15 managed, and information s provided to
management.

The information considerad indudes:
*  The stated policies and objectives and the operation of those polidies in practice.

+  The risks thal affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed.

*  How managers of the business are compensabed - eg. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected.

*  Transfors of financial assets to third partics in transactions  that do not qualify for
derecognition are nob considered sales for this purpose. consistent with the Company’s
continuing recognition of the assets,
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4CEETEAS-822D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Imypairment of fianciel nesets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECLs") on iinancial asscts measwared
at amortised cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal o lifetime ECLs, except
for financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default ocourring over the expected life of the
fimancial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured at
12-month ECLs,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available withowt undue cost or effort.

This indudes both quantitative and qualifative information and amalysis, based on the Company's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
a specified amount of days past due. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

*  The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company i full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

+  The financial asset is more than 363 days past due.

Lifietime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument,

12-momth ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorder period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
ioeaths).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether finandal assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the fnancial asset have ocourred.

Evidence that a finandal asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
+  Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,
+ A breach of confract such as a default or being more than 1580 days past due.
= The restructuring of a loan or advance that is out of the normal practice.

+ It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptoy or other financial reorganisation.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financal asset is witten off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For customers, the
Company has a policy of assessing all balances greater than 120 days.

Fircial lalrilities - anortized cost

The Company's financial liabilities include frade pavables, other payables and accrued expenses.
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction
costs. Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. All interest-related charges are reported in profit or loss in the Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income,

Financial liabilities - fair value tirongh profil or loss

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through the profit or loss if it is cassified as
held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at
fair value through the profit or loss are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, induding any
interest expense, are recognised in the profit or loss. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
lnsses are recognised in the profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the
[profit or loss,

Derecognition of finamgial assets amd fimarecial labilifies
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights o the cash flows from the
financial assel exping, or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows in a ransaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct are ransferred or in
which the Company neither transfors nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does nob retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position but retains cither all, or substantially all, of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In
these cases, the transferred assets are not denccognised.

The Company derecognises a financial hability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a finanaal liability when its terms are modified and
the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new finandal liabdlity
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognibion of a fimancial liability, the difference between the carrving amouant extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transforred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in the
profit or loss,

23
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
212  Financial instruments (continued)

MNon-fieancial instrinments

At cach reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

213 Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at oost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided at the
following annual rates in order to write off the cost less estimated residual value of cach asset over ils
estimated usceful life;

Fixtures & fittings - straight line over 5 vears

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if appropriate,

The carrying values of are reviewed annually for impairment in periods if events or changes in
arcumskanoes indicate the carrying value may mot be recoverable,

The gains and loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrving amount of property and equipment, and is recognized net
within profit or loss,

214  Intangible assets

[ntangible assets are capitalised and amortised over their estimated  useful economic lives on a
straight-line basis:

Incremental costs o new contracts - straight line over 5 vears
Capatalised software = straight line over 3 vears

Maintenance costs relating o computer software programs are expensed to the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income when incurred. Development expenditure represents internally
generated costs incurred on development activities. These costs have been capitalised in accordance with
the requirements of TAS 38 Intangible Assets.

In line with the requirements of IFES 15 Kevenue from Contracts with Customers, incremental
recoverable expenses relating to contracks with customers are capitalised and amortised over the expecied
life of the contract when these expenses are expected 1o be reoovered. Management estimates the
expected life of the contract, Where certain contracts have a definite usceful life, the incremental costs have
been amortised over the appropriate life of the contract,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUETD)
215  Equity and reserves

All capital payments are booked to equity within share capital or share premium, Reserves consist of
accumulabed profit or loss as taken from the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income since date of incorporation.

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable o the issue of now
ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the prooeeds,

The share premium account includes the premium on issue of ordinary shares, net of any issue oosts.

Retained earnings represents accumulated comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial vear and prior
financial periods.

216 Impairment of assets, other than financial instruments

At the end of each financial vear, the Company conducts an impairment review of all ils assets and
assesses whether there is any indication that the recoverable amount of an asset is less than it carrying
amount, IF any such indication exists, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount, resulting in an impairment loss. Impairment losses are recognised immediately in the Statement

of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Whoere the droumstances causing an impairment of an asset, other than goodwill, no longer apply, then
the impairment is reversed through the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. An
impairmeent loss recognised fnr!.;nndwill 15 nob reversed in subsequent p-l:ri::rd.-'..

The recoverable amount of tangible fixed assets, goodwall and other intangible fixed assets is the higher
of the fair value less cost to sell, of the asset and its value in use. The value in use of these assets is the
present value of the cash flows expected to be derived from those assets. This is determined by reference
to the present value of the future cash flows of the Company which is considered by the Directors to be a
single cash generating unit.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

2, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
217  Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the obligation will be required to be settled, and a reliable cstimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are discounted when the tinwe
value of money is material,

Contingent liabilitics are potential obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurmence or non-eocurmence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the finandal statements. bul
are disdlosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote,
Contingent liabdlities are assessed continually to determine whether an outflow of resources embodying
coonomic benefits has become probable. If it becomes probable that an owtfloww of future economic
benefits will be required, a provision is recognised, if a reliable estimate is available, in the financial
statements of the period in which the change in probability oocurs.

If the Company has provided for a provision or contingent liability or asset, management estimate the
fair value, using the information made available to them, and probable expedted cash flow advised to
them by consulted professionals.,

218 Going concerm

The Directors are nol aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, Therefore, the financial stabements continue o be
prepared on a going concern basis,
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

3 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
31 Segmental reporting

The breakdown of the Company revenue streams is s follows:

2024 2023
€ €
Management and Helated fees 88,636,558 70,149,292

The Company is authorised and regulated as an AIFM and UCITS Management Company to investment
funds, providing fund management and other adtivities. Turnover comprises management fees and
seb-up fees, Management fees are calculated based on a percentage of a fund's MNet Asset Value {or
“NAV"Y, sulbgect boa minimuom agreed foe.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers by geographical market is given below:

2024 2023
£ €
Cayman Islands 1,517,362 1,414,589
France 1,353,311 824,157
Luxembourg 584777 4 171,205
Republic of Ireland 79,044,081 62,773,445
Spain 46,645 265,802
Switzerland 207 .
United Kingdom 167,225

86,036,555 70,149,292

7
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4, EMPLOYEES AND DINRECTORS
4.1 Staff costs

Staff costs during the financial year comprise:

2024 2023

13 €

Wages and salanies 13,531,552 8,580 905
Social security costs 1,519, 9K 927 918
Pension oosts 1,015,322 648,979
326,576 190,013

Benefits
16,393,440 10,362,905

4.2 Directors” remuneration

Drirectors’ remuneration during the fimamcial VEAr Comprise:

024 2023
€ €

Drirectors’ remuneration
Directors’ emol uments B86,624 530,875
Directors’ pension contributions 45437 25,750
Directors’ benefits 3,760 4114
Diirectors’ socal security costs 03,947 28,907
L0, 765 545,046

Remuneration of Directors is disclosed above. Other than noted above, no expenses, share options or
other remuneration was paid or awarded to the Directors during the finandal year. The amounts
outstanding to Directors as at 31 December 2024 was €37,500 (2023: €91,875).

43 Number of employees
The average number of emplovess (including executive Directors) during the finandal year was as
followws:
2024 023
147 S

Management and staff
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

5 PROFIT/LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX

The profit before income tax is stated after charging/{orediting):

Administrative expenses
Aundilor’s remieration

For services as auditor

For taxation compliance
Amortisation

Bad debt

Deprecation - owned assets
Foreign exchange (gam)/loss
Legal and professional
Recharges from group companies
Staff costs (Mobe 4.1)

Director costs (Mote 4.2)
Other expenses
Total administeative expenses

Cost of sales

Directors’ fees for the Funds managed by the Company

Audit and accounting fees for the Funds managed by the Company

Other cost of sales
Total cost of sales

2024 2023

€ €

40,000 53,187

- 9847

9,812 73,719
275,726 59,507
245,088 7E1
(303,176} 304,741
1,629,300 536,893
16,784, 165 17,271,434
16,393,440 10,362,905
1,004, 768 595, 646
3,139,576 3,254,080
349,300,659 32,819,770
742,847 51, Bt
2.048,618 1,850,994
23,723,280 26,942 363
26,514,745 29,354,207

Other cost of sales constitutes costs paid by the Company in respect of the Waystone platform funds
(umbrella funds that are managed by Waystone, but which host multiple investment managers and
investment advisors on individual sub-funds) and certam dient funds (whene the Company receives a
management fee and pays cerfain expenses in respect of the client out of the management fee). These
oosts of sales are recovered through the fees charged as per turmover in Note 3 above,

Orther income includes insurance proceeds received as compensation for legal expenses incurred, relating
to proceedings that were served on the Company by a conbractual counterparty. Other income for the

financial vear was €977,329 (2023 €Nil) . See Note 2.

29
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

&, FINANCE INCOME ANTY COST

2024 2023
€ €

Finance ncome:
Deposit account interest 15,842 8578
Interest income on cash equivalents 638, Y04 -
Interest income on intercompany loans 6,329 -
Met finance incomef{cost) Bid, 135 8,578

30
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

7. INCOME TAX

7.1 Analysis of tax charge

Current tax:
Income fax current financial year

Total tax charge

7.2 Factors affecting the tax expense

2024 2023

€ €
1,173,690 590,751
1,173,690 690,751

The tax assessed for the financial vear is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the Republic of

[reland. The difference is explained below:

Profit before income tax taxable at 12.5% (023 12.5%)
Profit before inconie tax table at 25% (2023: 25%)
Profit for the financial year

Profit multiplied by the standard rate of

corporation tx in the Republic of Ireland of 12.5% (2023: 12.5%)

Profit before tax multiplied by 25% (2023: 25%:)

Effect of:

Other tax effects, including Group loss relief
(Owverpunder-provision in prior finandal year
Income tax expense

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank
Cash equivalents

2024 2023

€ €
22821114 7975315
6,135 §578
23,485,249 7083893
2,852,630 005, 914
166,034 2,145
308,673 04, (150
(1,155,673) -
(689, 310) {3008, 308)
1,173,650 690,751
2024 2023

€ £
0,308,071 31,568,430
12,974,510 12,517,747
33,283,581 44,066,156

Please view Mote 18 disclosing the Company's CBI minimum capital requirements.

3l
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

&, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

The credit risk on cash transactions is mitigated by transacting, with counterparties that are regulated
enfities subject to prudential supervision, or with high oredit ratings assigned by international credit
rating agencies. The credit rating, for 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are as follows:

2024 023
Cash held at Allied Irish Bank A2 Al
Cash held at Bank of Ireland A3 Al
Cash held at HSBC Aad Aad
9, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2024 2023

€ €

Current:
Trade receivables® 6,500,407 6,935,025
Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,508,081 1,548,537
Other receivables 1,972,314 386,959
Income fax receivable 511,742 171,431
VAT 1,026,312 164,971
Acorued income 15,025, 09 12,137,930
Prepayments 425,046 6E5,453

29,729,991 22,026,305

* Trade receivables is net of provision for bad debts amounting to (E329,650) (2023: €39,507)
Amounts owed by group companies are interest free, unseoured and pavable on demand,
10, FINANCIAL ASSETS - BORROWINGS AND LOANS

Company loans and borrowings consist of:

2024 2023
£ €

Current:
Intercompany loans Q000,000 -
4,000, (00 -

Loan is subject bo 3.5% interest per annum, is unsecured and payable on demand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

11. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Fixtures
and
fittings Total
£ €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2024 05,563 95,803
Additions 12, 597 12,597
As at 31 December 2024 108,460 108,460
Depreciation
As al 1 January 2024 19,682 19,682
Charge for the financial vear 3,014 o614
As at 31 December 2024 56,296 56,296
Net book value
As at 31 December 2024 52,164 32,164
Fixtures
ang
fithings Total
13 €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2023 12,472 12472
Additions H3,.391 #3301
As at 31 December 2023 95,863 95,863
Depreciation
Asat 1 January 2023 11,871 11,871
Charge for the financial vear 7A11 7811
As at 31 December 2023 19,652 19,682
Net book value
As at 31 December 2023 76,181 Th181

33
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

12, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Incremental
Capitalised costs to new
software contracts Total
€ £ €
Cost
Asat 1 January 2024 29,750 1,368,293 1438073
Additions [ (Dispozals) = (49 538) (49, 545)
As at 31 December 2024 849,760 1,318,445 1,408,225
Amortisation
Asalb 1 January 2024 9,015 57H 316 587,331
Charge for the financial year 47,084 248,538 295,622
As at 31 December 2024 56,0199 826,854 352,953
Net book value
Asg at 31 December 2024 33,681 491,591 525272
Incremental
Capitalised  costs o new
software contracts Total
3 € €
Cost
As at 1 January 2023 859,750 1,085, 488 1,175,268
Additions [ (Disposals) - 252 805 282 805
As at 31 December 2023 59,750 1,368,293 1458073
Amortisation
Asat 1 January 2023 - EIENO 33611
Charge for the financial vear 9,015 264,705 273,720
Asg at 31 December 2023 9,015 578,316 587331
Net book value
As at 31 December 2023 80,765 TR9,977 870,742

The incremental cost b new contracts related to capitalised commissions paid to business development
staff.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

13 GOODWILL

Per the Business Transfer Agreement (BTAT) executed on 19 April 2023, certain dients of Link Fund
Manager Solutions (1E) Limited ("LFMSIL™) novated to the Company on % October 2023 by way of a
Business Transfer Agreement ("BTA) and Central Bank of Ireland ("CBI™) Change of Service Provider.
The Company purchased the assumed assets and liabilities of LEMSIL. As at 31 December 2024, the
Goodwill has a value of €2,525,153 (2023; €2,825,153).

14. SHARE CAPITAL
MNumber of MNumber of Number of

shares shares shares fully MNominal 2024 2023
authorised issued paid value € €
Ordinary 100,000,000 4,490,006 4,490,006 1 o4, 4500, 006 4,40, 006

141 Share premium

Share premium represents the excess price of the issued shares over their par value. Share premium as at
31 December 2024 is €17, 918,369 (2023: €17 918,369).

142 Capital contribution

The Capital contribution is additional capital provided by the Parent Company Clifton Directors Limited.
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Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

15. RESERVES

Asat] January 2024
Unrealised currency gain/loss
Profit fior the financial year
Divicend

As at 31 December 2024

Asat 1 January 2023
Unrealised currency gain/loss
Profit for the financial vear
As at 31 December 2023

Reserves Deseription and purpose
Retained carnings

clsewhere,
Other reserves

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current:

Trade payables

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other pavables

Social security and other taxes
Accrued expenses

Retained Other
earnings TESETVES Total
3 £ €
23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730
. (186,650 {186,650)
23,288,888 - 23,285, 8RR
{ 15,000,000 - (15,000,000
31,816,968 - 31,816,968
16,234,938 - 16,234,938
- 186,650 186,650
7,293,142 - 7,293,142
23,528,080 186,650 23,714,730

All other net gainsflosses and  transactions with owners not  recognised

Other reserves that don't fit into retained earnings or translation reserves.

2024 2023

£ L3
2095,493 M), 535%
4,689,925 5,043,387
1.737.517 -
434,006 492,327
B.633,844 13,825,209
17,55, 818 20,161,462

Amounts owed to Group companies ane interest free, unsecured and payable on demand.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has related party relationships with its shareholders, Directors and other key management
personnel, and related undertakings of the Waystone group.

Drirectors” remuneration and transactions are disclosed in Note 4. The Directors’ remuneration discosed
in Mote 4 represents the total compensation paid to key management personnel.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

During the financial yvear, the Company entered into the following transactions with fellme group

COMpRnies:
Administrative
Revenue expenses Amounts
financial financial owed by/
Mature of year ended  year ended (owed o)
Intercompany 2024 2024 2024
Transaction 3 £ €
‘Wavstone (Ireland) Limited Net Beceivable - (8,054) 18,868
Wavstone Asset Management (Cayman) Lid — Receivable 168,729 - 168,729
Wavstone C.apital Solutions (LB Limited MNet I’;ly;lhlc - (1,978,157} (137,473)
Wavstone Centralised Services (IE) Limited  Net Receivable - (5,278,287} 1273576
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (IE) Limited  MNet Payable 512 (56,580) (546, 0068)
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (LK)
Limited Net Payable 653 {7,759} (14,077}
Waystone Compliance Solutions (US) Lid Met Payable - - (23,804)
Waystone Compliance Solulions (Middle
East) Ltd Met Payable . (12,289) (29,5400
Waystone Corporate Services (IE) Limited Met Payable - (121,743) (143,729
Waystone Services (Lux) Sarl Receivable a3 - a3
Waystone Fund Services (Switeerland) 5.4 Net Receivable 08 {642 GG 142
Waystone Fund Administrators (1E) Limited Payable - (108,563) (B24,597)
Waystone Governance (UK) Limited Net Beoeivable 96 (1,046.552) 1,230,113
Waystone Governance (USA) Ine Expense - (26,075) -
Waystone Investment Management {IE)
Limnited Net Payable 17871 (LI38150)  {1,206,219)
Wavstone Management (UK) Limited Net Payable 105,950 (131,202) (112,17%)
Waystone Management Company (Lux) Sarl  Net Payable 103,730 (1,444,959) (7R3, 5000
Waystone Services (Lux) SA Receivable 39,858 - 39,858
Sigma Irish Topeo Limited Payable . - {1540, B0t
Sigma Irish Acquico Limited Met Payable . (4780799 (1,171,272)
Sigma Irish Acquice Linited Loan - - EALLARENL
Wavstone Administration Solutions (Lux)5A  Receivable - - 79,550
Wavstone Administration Solutions (US) Inc Payable . {1,639) {1,434)
Fing BidCo Limited Receivable . - BE1,593
Fing MidCao Limited Receivable . - 10,452
King DebtCo Limited Reoeivable - - 5
King TopCo Limited Payable - - (14,47%)
KB Associates Consulting Lid Payable - - (20,000

a7
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Administrative
Revenue EXpEnses Amounts
financial financial owed by/
yearended  year ended (owed to)
Nature of 2023 2023 023
Transactions € £ €
Wavstone (Ireland) Limited Met Receivable - (723,862) 28,755
Waystone Capital Solutions (LK) Limited Met Payable . (2,360,500} {182,756)
‘Wavstone Centralised Services (IE) Limited Met Payable - (6,645508)  (2,730,726)
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (LK)
Limited Net Fayable - (8,422) (5,422}
Wavstone Compliance Solutions (US) Lid Met Payable - (1,623} (2,065)
Waystone Compliance Solutions (Middle
East) Ltd Met Payable . - (18,037)
Wavstone Corporate Services (IE) Limited  MNet Receivable - [42961) 233
Waystone Services (Lux) Sarl Met Receivable - (1,192} 10,266
Waystone Fund Services (Switzerland) 5.A Expenses - (383,030 -
Waystone Fund Administrators (1E) Limited  Net Beceivable . (3,073) 341,866
Waystone Governance (UK) Limited Revenug/Expenses 163,857 (1,338.856) -
Waystone Investment Management {IE)
Limited Net Payable . (727,502) {459, 985)
Waystone Management (LK) Limited Expenses - (105, 10%) -
Waystone Management Company (Lux) Sarl  Net Payable . - (210,961)
Sigma lrish Acquico Limited Met Payable . - (210,576)
Waystone Administrabion Solutions (Lux) 54 Expenses - (3.594.896) -
King BidCo Limited Met Beceivable - - 332,028
King MidCo Limited Met Receivable = - 10,452
King DebtCo Limited Met Beorivable - - 2023
Fing TopCo Limited Met Payable - - (11,403)
KB Associabes Consulting Lid Met Payable . - {50, 288
Waystone Holdings {Lux) Sarl Expenses - (371.319) -

Administration cxpenses relating to servioes provided by other companies are disclosed in Mote 5. Please
also refer to Mote 16 for amounts payable to group companies, The Company Secretary held shares in
other Group companies of the wider Waystone Group at 31 December 2024
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS
181  Financial risk management

The Directors have overall responsibility for the determination of the Company's risk management
obpechives and policies and, whilst retaming ulbmate responsibility for them, it has delegated  the
authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives
and policies o the Company's finance function.

The Company has exposure to the following risks:

+ Credit risk:

+ Liquidity risk;

* Market risk;

+ Foreign exchange nsk;
& [nterest rate risk and

+ Capital management risk.
1511 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the ﬂtmpany if a customer or counterparty o a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company is mainly exposed to oredit risk from
credit sales. [t is Company policy, to assess the oredit nisk of new customers before entering into contracts,

The Company has credit risk exposure o banks and other affiliates arising from funds deposited with
these institutions. The Company mitigate the risk to its funds by ensuring that counterparties are well
capitalised institutions,

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum coredit exposure. The maximum
exposure to oredit risk at the reporting date was:

2024 2023

£ €

Cash and cash equivalents 13,283,581 44,086,156

Trade receivables 6,901 407 6,935,025

Amounts owed by group undertakings 3,868,051 1,548,537

Ohher receivables 3510368 719,360

Accrued income 15,025, 06 12,137 950
Loans and borrowings 4,000,000

71,588,526 65,427,038
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (CONTINUED)
181  Financial risk management (continued)
1811 Credit risk (continued)

The Company manages credit risk in respect of fees receivable from clients by only delivering servioes to
reputable and financially stable clients. Management has reviewed the fee receivable balance and
estimated an appropriate expected credit loss balanoe that reflects historical, current and forward-looking
information reasonably expected to be known at the date these fimancial statements were authorized.

2024 2023

£ €

Trade receivables, gross 7,231,057 540, 532
Bad debt provision (329,650 (549,507)
Trade receivables, net 6,901,407 6,935,025

15.1.2 Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk arises from the Company management of working capital. It is the risk that the Company
will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company policy is to
ensure that it will always have sufficient cash fo allow it to meet its liabilities when they become due.

The Company’s liquidity position is monitored regulacly by management and is reviewed on a periodic
basis by the Board.

As at 31 December 2024, the anbiapated undiscounted cash flows amounting to €17, 590817 are payable
les than one vear (2023 €20,161,462).

18,13 Market risk

The Company does not hold any direct interests in underlying funds under management on its Statement
of Finandal Position and none of the Compamny’s current assels are materially directly affected by
financial markets. Market volatility since the finandial year end has not had any material impact on the
Company to date.

1814 Foreign exchange risk

The Company holds a significant amount of its net assets in Euro but has reoeivables and deposits in
United States (or "US") Dollars and Great British Pounds (or "GEM). The forcign exchange risk on these
LS Dollar balances is kept to a minimum through regular conversions and balancing holdings in Euro
equivalent amounts, This serves to minimise the matenal foreign exchange risks. Upon review,

management have determined that there are no material reccivable balances exposed o foreign exchange
risk at the financial year end and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been performed,

40
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Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements {(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND ASSOCIATED RISKS (CONTINUED)
181  Financial risk management (continued)
1815 Interest rabe risk

The Company is not exposed lo significant interest rate risk and management does not consider interest
rate risk to be a significant risk of the Company.

18.1.6 Capital risk management

The Company is subject to externally imposed mininum capital requirements by the CEI and these are
reviewed on a monthly basis by the senior management within the Company and the Board. The
Company’s regulatory capital requirements are considered in the budgeting process as per regulatory
puidance.

The Company's CELminimum capital requirements are as prescribed under the EL Capatal Requirements
Drirective (Directive M 3/36/EL) and regulation (EU) NO 5752013 on prudential requirements for credit
institutions and investments firsts (logether, the "Capital Requirements™). The Company is required to
hold the minimum level of capilal as sel oul in legislation at all times and is required o submil capital
returns o the Central bank on a periodic basis, For the purpose of this requirement the capital required is
held via cash and cash equivalents, As at the end of the financial vear the Central Bank mininum capital
requirements was €17, 087,153 (2023: €16, 399 639).

The Company is mecting its objective for managing capital through holding cash on deposit and cash and
cash equivalents above the minimum capital regquirement.,

14, CONTINGEMNCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Company has regulatory, confractual, and other duties and obligations arising in the ordinary course
of its business. In its capacity as General Partner to investment limited partmerships (the "Partnerships”),
the Company is liable for the debts and obligations of the Partnerships where the Partnerships have
insufficient property to meet its debts and obligations. These are in the nature of contingent liabilities.
Such liabilities may or may not be covered by the Company’s professional indemnity insurance,

In August 2024, proceedings were served on the Company by a conlractual counterparty. Waystone
Management Company (IE) Limited has delivered a full and robust defence to these proceedings and
docs not consider it probalile that it will result i an outflow of economic resources. As at 31 December
2024, no provisions have been made in these financial statements. Any possible obligation (if any) is
uncertain and cannot be measured with sufficient reliabilitv. In addition, any amount which could arise
as aresult of this contingent liability would be reduced by the insurance cover in plage.

0. CAPMITAL COMMITMENTS

The Company had o material capital commitments as at 31 December 2024 (2023: €Nil).

41

224/268



EDINETOOOO
OO000oOO00o0DO000Do00D00o0DO000DO0o0no(Ess?72)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Docusign Envelope 1D: 4CEETEAS-B22D-4348-B50F-CIFEAIDA T CET

WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

21. INDEMNIFICATIONS

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into confracts that confain a variety of
representations, warranties and obligations which provide general indemnifications. The Company’s
maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may
be made against the Company that have not yet ocourred. However, based on experience, the Company
exapects the nisk of loss to be remote and has professional indemnity insurance in place to mitigate these
risks. Liabilities incurred may or may not be covered by the Company's professional indemmity
INSUranog.

22, ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

The immediate Parent Company of the Company, as at 31 December 2024 was Clifton Directors Limited,
which is a company incorporated in 2007 in Ireland. Clifton Directors Limited held 106006 of the share
capital of the Company, On 1 January 2025, as per Part 9 of the Companies Act 2004, Clifton Dhirectors
Limited merged with King Topoo Limibed,

The ultimate parent undertaking is Sigma Irish Topoo Limited, the parent company of the Waystone
Group, The registered address is 4th Floor, 35 Shelbourne Boad, Dublin 4, Treland, There is no ultimate
confrolling party.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sigma Inish
Topoo Limited, which is a company incorporated in Ireland in 2021, Al companics ultimately owned by
Sigma Irish Topoo Limited are collectively known to be a subsidiary of the Waystone Group.

Accounts for these entities can be olained from Companies Registration Office Ireland.
23, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

[In preparing these financial statements, the Directors have evaluated and disclosed all material
subsequent events up to 29 April 2025, which is the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued and are not aware of any other subsequent events, other than the disclosure below, which would
require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Effective 31 March 2025, Rachel Wheeler resigned as non-executive director and  Andrea Oman was
appointed as non-execubive director of the Company.

The Directors note the recent volatility in financial markets caused by the trade tariffs announced by the
United States of America and whilst any fall in markets will negatively impact the Company’s assels
under management and  therefore revenue, the Dhrectors remamn sabisfied i the commeraal and
operational resilienoe of the Company. As with all macrocoonomic events the Dhrectors remam active in
appraising the risks and opportunitics they bring,.
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WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

4, APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements were approved on 29 April 2025

43
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Brown Brothers Harriman Trustee Services Ireland Limited

2025 6,750,000 10 926

1995 29

IE

Waystone Investment Management (IE) Limited

2025 1,635,000 6,500

2017

Brown Brothers Harriman Fund Administration Services Ireland Limited

2025 13,300,000 19 8,862
1995 29

2025 836 1,600

2025 875 5,000
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Unitholders of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Briongloid Bridge Unit Trust (or the “Trust”), which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Investments as at 31 December 2024 and the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changesin Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the financia year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, including the material
accounting policy information.

Thefinancial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsisIrish
law and FRS 102 “ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”
(Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland).

In our opinion, Trust's financial statements:
give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland of the
assets, liabilities and financial position of the Trust as at 31 December 2024 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Unit Trust Act 1990.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (or “1SAs
(Ireland)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish Auditing and
Accounting Supervisory Authority (or “IAASA"), and the ethical pronouncements established by Chartered
Accountants Ireland, applied as determined to be appropriate in the circumstances for the Trust. We have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors of the Manager (or the
“Directors’) use of going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statementsis
appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue
as agoing concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. The DMS Target Maturity Setting Fund 2020-07 (Investing in Goldman Sachs
Corporate Bonds) will be put into liquidation following the Fund Maturity Date (that been the 25 July 2025)
and therefore this sub-fund is not a going concern.

Our responsihilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

Other information comprises information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon including Management and Administration, the Investment Manager's
Report, Statement of Manager's Responsibilities and the unaudited appendices. The Manager isresponsible
for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistenciesin the financial statements, we are required to determine whether there
isamaterial misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and those charged with governance for the financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager's Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements which give atrue and fair view in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Practicein Ireland, including FRS 102, and for such internal control asthey determine
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

The auditor’ s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statementsasa
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes their opinion. Reasonable assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (Ireland), the auditor will exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. The auditor will also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Trust’'s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. If they
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, they are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify their
opinion. Their conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves atrue and fair view.

The auditor communicates with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that may be identified during the audit.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Trust's unitholders, as a body, in accordance with the agreed scope of our
engagement. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust’s unitholders those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and the Trust’s
unitholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Glennon

For and on behalf of

Grant Thornton

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
13-18 City Quay

Dublin 2

Date 11 June 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on the financial statements of WAYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY (IE) LIMITED (“the
company”)
In our opinion the financial statements:

e give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the company as at 31 December
2024 and of the profit for the financial year then ended; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework and, in particular,
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements we have audited comprise:

the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income;

the Statement of Financial Position;

the Statement of Changes in Equity;

the Statement of Cash Flows; and

the related notes 1 to 24, including material accounting policy information as set out in note 2.

The relevant financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is the Companies Act 2014 and
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by
the European Union (“the relevant financial reporting framework”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are described below in the “Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements” section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting
Supervisory Authority, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial
Statements, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for
the other information contained within the Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and otherwise
comply with the Companies Act 2014, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on IAASA’s website at:
https://iaasa.ie/publications/description-of-the-auditors-responsibilities-for-the-audit-of-the-financial-statements. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:

e We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

e In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited.

The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements.

In our opinion, those parts of the directors’ report specified for our review, which does not include
sustainability reporting when required by Part 28 of the Companies Act 2014, have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Based on the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the provisions in the Companies Act 2014 which require us to report to you if,
in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by law are not made.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the
Companies Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Brian Jackson
For and on behalf of Deloitte Ireland LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm

Deloitte & Touche House, 29 Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2

30 April 2025
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